



PLACER COUNTY WATER AGENCY  
SINCE 1957

BOARD OF DIRECTORS BUSINESS CENTER

Gray Allen, District 1 144 Ferguson Road

Alex Ferreira, District 2 MAIL

Lowell Jarvis, District 3 P.O. Box 6570

Mike Lee, District 4 Auburn, CA 95604

Ben Mavy, District 5 PHONE

David Breninger, General Manager 530.823.4850

Ed Tiedemann, General Counsel 800.464.0030

[WWW.PCWA.NET](http://WWW.PCWA.NET)

October 1, 2012

File No. 01030A

**Electronically Filed**

Kimberly D. Bose, Secretary  
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission  
888 First Street, N.E.  
Washington, DC 20426

**SUBJECT: Placer County Water Agency's Comments on the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission's Draft Environmental Impact Statement (FERC Project No. 2079-069)**

Dear Secretary Bose:

Placer County Water Agency (PCWA) is pleased to file comments on the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission's (Commission or FERC) Draft Environmental Impact Statement (DEIS) for Hydropower License — Middle Fork American River Project (MFP) (FERC Project No. 2079-069) issued July 23, 2012. The MFP is being relicensed by PCWA using the Commission's Integrated Licensing Process (ILP).

PCWA appreciates the Commission staff's efforts in preparing the DEIS. PCWA requests renewal of its license to continue operation and maintenance of the MFP with a license term of 50 years. The new license term requested by PCWA is based on the substantial costs associated with: (1) relicensing the MFP; (2) capital improvements; (3) new environmental measures, programs, and facilities; and (4) extensive monitoring and on-going resource agency consultation to ensure continued resource protection over the term of the new license.

PCWA's comments on the Commission's DEIS are compiled in the enclosed table. Each comment is presented in the order that it appears in the Commission's Adobe PDF version of the document posted on the Commission's eLibrary, and is referenced by section, page, paragraph, and line number, as appropriate. The table includes statements from the DEIS and PCWA's recommended revisions in redline/strike-through format. In addition, each comment is categorized as a clarification, typographical error, updated information, or an important omission, as appropriate, followed by PCWA's rationale. PCWA respectfully requests that the Commission incorporate the recommended revisions into the Final EIS.

Kimberly D. Bose, Secretary  
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission  
October 1, 2012  
Page 2

Utilizing the Commission's eFiling system, PCWA eFiled these comments on the DEIS to the Commission's Secretary. Courtesy copies of the comments (1 paper copy and 1 electronic copy) have also been mailed via courier service (concurrent with this filing) to the Commission's Office of Energy Projects and Commission's Office of General Counsel-Energy Projects. In addition, PCWA provided a copy of this filing to each party designated on the attached distribution list (Attachment 1) via eService, or by mailing paper/electronic copies. The Certificate of Service is provided in Attachment 2.

If you have any questions regarding this filing, please contact me at (530) 823-4889 or by e-mail at [afecko@pcwa.net](mailto:afecko@pcwa.net).

Sincerely,



Andrew Fecko  
Resource Planning Administrator

Enclosure

PCWA's Recommended Revisions to the Commission's Draft Environmental Impact Statement

Attachments

Attachment 1 – Distribution List  
Attachment 2 – Certificate of Service

**Enclosure**

## PCWA's Recommended Revisions to FERC's Draft Environmental Impact Statement.

DEIS SECTION	DEIS REFERENCE	DEIS STATEMENT	PCWA'S RECOMMENDED REVISIONS	PCWA'S RATIONALE
<b>EXECUTIVE SUMMARY</b>				
Executive Summary	Page xxv Paragraph 7 Line 4  Page xxviii Paragraph 1 Line 4	These effects would include those associated with reservoir drawdown for operation and maintenance purposes (i.e., FS-05-03-55-684 and FS-05-03-55-689), recreation activities, including trail maintenance and alignment (PL-03 and PL-19), and road construction (FS-05-03-55-495) and documentation of California State Historic Preservation Office (California SHPO) concurrence with all National Register recommendations;	These effects would include those associated with <u>recreation and/or</u> reservoir drawdown for operation and maintenance purposes (i.e., FS-05-03-55-684 and FS-05-03-55-689); <del>recreation activities, including trail maintenance and alignment (PL-03 and PL-19); gage maintenance (PL-03); and road construction maintenance/ trail upgrades (FS-05-03-55-495) (FS-05-17-54-495)</del> and documentation of California State Historic Preservation Office (California SHPO) concurrence with all National Register recommendations;	<b>Clarification.</b> The DEIS incorrectly refers to Site FS-05-17-54-495 as FS-05-03-55-495. Site FS-05-17-54-495 is a historic mining ditch located near a project diversion. This ditch crosses a project road and trail. The ditch could potentially be affected by maintenance of the road and upgrades to the existing trail.  PL-03 is a historic mining site located on private property (not owned by PCWA) outside of the FERC Project boundary. This resource could potentially be affected by maintenance of a gage.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final Historic Properties Management Plan, Pages 29-30 and Table 1, September 2012.</i>
Executive Summary	Page xxiii Paragraph 3 Bullet 5	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>After the first two downramping events at French Meadows and Hell Hole dams, provide a report to the agencies and Commission documenting PCWA's ability to manage spill flows to provide the specified ramping rates and, if appropriate, make recommendations for ramping rate modifications.</li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li><u>During the first two spill events when down ramp of spill flows occur at Hell Hole and French Meadows reservoirs, the Licensee will test their ability to manage spill flows to provide the specified flow schedules.</u> After the first two downramping events at French Meadows and Hell Hole dams, <u>PCWA will</u> provide a <u>testing</u> report to the agencies and Commission documenting PCWA's ability to manage spill flows. <u>After the second spill event, the Licensee may recommend modifications to provide the specified ramping rates, and, if appropriate, make recommendations for ramping rate modifications.</u></li> </ul>	<b>Clarification.</b> PCWA's recommended revisions are consistent with the ramping rate testing program specified in PCWA's Alternative Filing, Attachment C4 – Condition No. 24, Pages 21-22 and is consistent with the USDA-FS Preliminary Terms and Conditions, Condition No. 24. The recommended changes clarify that PCWA will be testing their ability to provide the specified ramping rates during the first two spill events.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Submittal of Alternative Conditions, Attachment C4, PCWA Alternative Condition No. 24 – Ramping Rates, Pages 21-22, September 2011.</i>
<b>SECTION 1.0 INTRODUCTION</b>				
1.1 Application	Page 2 Figure 1	<b>Map label:</b> Duncan Creek – French Meadows Tunnel	<b>Map label:</b> Duncan Creek – <del>French Meadows Tunnel</del> <u>Middle Fork Tunnel</u>	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Map 3-2a, February 2011.</i>
1.2.1 Purpose of Action	Page 3 Paragraph 2	Issuing a new license for the Middle Fork Project would allow PCWA to continue generating electricity for the term of a new license, making electrical power from a renewable resource available to its customers.	Issuing a new license for the Middle Fork Project would allow PCWA to continue generating electricity for the term of a new license, making electrical power from a renewable resource available to <del>its customers</del> <u>the California electrical grid.</u>	<b>Clarification.</b> PCWA is an independent generator (wholesaler of electricity) that sells electricity to California's electrical retailers.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Section 2.2, Page 2-2 and 2-3, February 2011.</i>
1.3 Statutory and Regulatory Requirements	Page 4 Table 1 Row 4 Column 3	<b>Requirement:</b> Clean Water Act-Water Quality Certification <b>Status:</b> Application for water quality certification accepted on July 18, 2011	<b>Requirement:</b> Clean Water Act-Water Quality Certification <b>Status:</b> <u>Original</u> application for water quality certification accepted on July 18, 2011; <u>timely withdrawal and re-filing of application for water quality certification accepted on June 21, 2012.</u>	<b>Updated Information.</b>  <i>Reference: Response letter from SWB filed with FERC on June 26, 2012.</i>
1.3.2 Clean Water Act	Page 6	Under section 401 of the Clean Water Act, a license applicant must obtain certification from the appropriate state pollution control agency verifying compliance with the Clean Water Act. On July 15, 2011, PCWA applied to the State Water Resources Control Board (Water Board) for 401 water quality certification for the Middle Fork American River Project. The Water Board received this request on July 18, 2011. The Water Board has until July 18, 2012, to act on the request.	Under section 401 of the Clean Water Act, a license applicant must obtain certification from the appropriate state pollution control agency verifying compliance with the Clean Water Act. On July 15, 2011, PCWA applied to the State Water Resources Control Board (Water Board) for 401 water quality certification for the Middle Fork American River Project. The Water Board received this request on July 18, 2011. <del>The Water Board has until July 18, 2012, to act on the request.</del> <u>On June 12, 2012, PCWA simultaneously withdrew and re-filed its request for 401 water quality certification for the Middle Fork American River Project. The Water Board received this request on June 12, 2012. The Water Board has until June 12, 2013 to act on the request.</u>	<b>Updated Information.</b>  <i>Reference: Response letter from SWB filed with FERC on June 26, 2012.</i>
<b>SECTION 2.0 PROPOSED ACTION AND ALTERNATIVES</b>				
2.1.1.2 Hell Hole Development	Page 13 Paragraph 2 Line 1	The Hell Hole development is located southwest of the French Meadows development on the Rubicon River and includes:	The Hell Hole development is located <del>southwest</del> <u>southeast</u> of the French Meadows development on the Rubicon River and includes:	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Section 3.0 Map 3-1, February 2011.</i>
2.1.1.3 Middle Fork Development	Page 13-14 Paragraph 3 Line 23	(5) a 07-mile penstock conveying water to the Middle Fork powerhouse	(5) a <del>07-mile</del> <u>0.7-mile</u> penstock conveying water to the Middle Fork powerhouse	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Section 3.0, Table 3-4, February 2011.</i>
2.1.3 Existing Project Boundary	Page 16 Paragraph 1 Line 2	The existing project boundary includes a total of 4,554 acres of land; 3,268 acres are lands of the United States managed by the Forest Service, and 1,286 acres are owned by PCWA.	The existing project boundary includes a total of 4,554 acres of land; 3,268 acres are lands of the United States managed by the Forest Service, and 1,286 acres are owned by PCWA <u>or private parties.</u>	<b>Clarification.</b> The remaining 1,286 acres of land within the project boundary that are not managed by USDA-FS include lands owned by PCWA as well as private parties.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Section 1.0, February 2011.</i>

**PCWA's Recommended Revisions to FERC's Draft Environmental Impact Statement.**

DEIS SECTION	DEIS REFERENCE	DEIS STATEMENT	PCWA'S RECOMMENDED REVISIONS	PCWA'S RATIONALE
2.2.2 Proposed Project Boundary	Page 24 Paragraph 2 Bullet 5 and 6	Areas where land within the project boundary would be reduced include: • Duncan Creek-Middle Fork tunnel corridor . . . • Ralston afterbay shoreline buffer	The following location should be added to the list of areas where a project boundary reduction would occur: • <a href="#">Middle Fork Interbay Shoreline Buffer</a>	<b>Clarification.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Map 4-3m, February 2011.</i>
2.2 Applicant's Proposal 2.2.4 Proposed Environmental Measures	Page 26 Below second bullet	• Develop an erosion control plan to be approved by the Commission. • Implement the proposed pulse flows shown in table 3.3.1-2 of this EIS.	• Develop an erosion control plan to be approved by the Commission. <a href="#">Aquatic Resources</a> • Implement the proposed pulse flows shown in table 3.3.1-2 of this EIS.	<b>Clarification.</b> The addition of this heading provides clarity to the text.
2.2 Applicant's Proposal 2.2.5 Modifications to Applicant's Proposal - Mandatory Conditions	Page 27 Paragraph 2 Bullet 4	• Condition no. 22: Implement the Alternative 1 minimum flows shown in table 5-3 of this EIS.	• Condition no. 22: Implement the Alternative 1 minimum flows shown in table 5-32 of this EIS.	<b>Clarification.</b> FERC's staff recommended minimum instream flows are provided in Table 5-2 on pages 319-321 in the DEIS.  <i>Reference: FERC, Draft Environmental Impact Statement for Hydropower License, Middle Fork American River Hydroelectric Project – FERC Project No. 2079-069, July 2012.</i>
2.2 Applicant's Proposal 2.2.5 Modifications to Applicant's Proposal - Mandatory Conditions	Page 27 Paragraph 2 Bullet 7	• Condition no. 25: Release the peaking reach minimum flows specified in table 5-3 during planned annual outages and concurrent unplanned outages at Middle Fork and Ralston powerhouses during May through September ....	• Condition no. 25: Release the peaking reach minimum flows specified in table 5-32 during planned annual outages and concurrent unplanned outages at Middle Fork and Ralston powerhouses during May through September ....	<b>Clarification.</b> FERC's staff recommended minimum instream flows are provided in Table 5-2 on pages 319-321 in the DEIS. Table 5-3 on page 324 is not the correct table.  <i>Reference: FERC, Draft Environmental Impact Statement for Hydropower License, Middle Fork American River Hydroelectric Project – FERC Project No. 2079-069, July 2012.</i>
2.4 Staff Alternative	Page 30 Paragraph 1 Bullet 5	• After the first two downramping events at French Meadows and Hell Hole dams, provide a report to the agencies and Commission documenting PCWA's ability to manage spill flows to provide the specified ramping rates and, if appropriate, make recommendations for ramping rate modifications.	• <a href="#">During the first two spill events when down ramp of spill flows occur at Hell Hole and French Meadows reservoirs, the licensee will test their ability to manage spill flows to provide the specified flow schedules.</a> After the first two downramping events at French Meadows and Hell Hole dams, <a href="#">PCWA will provide a testing report to the agencies and Commission documenting PCWA's ability to manage spill flows. After the second spill event, the licensee may recommend modifications to provide the specified ramping rates, and, if appropriate, make recommendations for ramping rate modifications.</a>	<b>Clarification.</b> PCWA's recommended revisions are consistent with the ramping rate testing program specified in PCWA's Alternative Filing, Attachment C4 – Condition No. 24, Pages 21-22 and is consistent with the USDA-FS Preliminary Terms and Conditions, Condition No. 24. The recommended changes clarify that PCWA will be testing their ability to provide the specified ramping rates during the first two spill events.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Submittal of Alternative Conditions, Attachment C4, PCWA Alternative Condition No. 24 – Ramping Rates, Pages 21-22, September 2011.</i>
2.4 Staff Alternative	Page 32 Paragraph 7 Line 3	These effects would include those associated with reservoir drawdown for operation and maintenance purposes (i.e., FS-05-03-55-684 and FS- FS-05-03-55-689), recreation activities, including trail maintenance and alignment (PL-03 and PL-19), and road construction (FS-05-03-55-495) and documentation of California State Historic Preservation Office (California SHPO) concurrence with all National Register recommendations;	These effects would include those associated with <a href="#">recreation and/or</a> reservoir drawdown for operation and maintenance purposes (i.e., FS-05-03-55-684 and FS- FS-05-03-55-689); <a href="#">recreation activities, including trail maintenance and alignment (PL-03 and PL-19); gage maintenance (PL-03); and road construction maintenance/ trail upgrades (FS-05-03-55-495) (FS-05-17-54-495)</a> and documentation of California State Historic Preservation Office (California SHPO) concurrence with all National Register recommendations;	<b>Clarification.</b> The DEIS incorrectly refers to Site FS-05-17-54-495 as FS-05-03-55-495. Site FS-05-17-54-495 is a historic mining ditch located near a project diversion. This ditch crosses a project road and trail. The ditch could potentially be affected by maintenance of the road and upgrades to the existing trail.  PL-03 is a historic mining site located on private property (not owned by PCWA) outside of the FERC Project boundary. This resource could potentially be affected by maintenance of a project gage.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final Historic Properties Management Plan, Pages 29-30 and Table 1, September 2012.</i>
<b>SECTION 3.0 ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS</b>				
3.1 General Description of the River Basin	Page 35 Paragraph 3 Line 3	The downstream-most project development, Oxford powerhouse, is at river mile (RM) 24, as measured from the confluence with the North Fork American River.	The downstream-most project development, <a href="#">Oxford Oxbow</a> powerhouse, is at river mile (RM) 24, as measured from the confluence with the North Fork American River.	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Map 7.1-1, February 2011.</i>
3.3.1 Geologic and Soil Resources 3.3.1.1 Affected Environment Soils	Page 38 Paragraph 4 Line 2	Soils surrounding the project facilities, reservoirs, and bypassed reaches generally consist of well-drained, sandy to silty loams forming steep slopes.	Soils surrounding the project facilities, reservoirs, and bypassed reaches generally consist of <a href="#">well-drained highly erodible</a> , sandy to silty loams forming steep <a href="#">unstable</a> slopes.	<b>Clarification.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Section 7.2.6, Page 7.2-6, February 2011.</i>
3.3.1 Geologic and Soil Resources 3.3.1.1 Affected Environment Geomorphology <i>Stream Channel Characterization</i>	Page 39 Paragraph 3 Line 7	A 1.2-mile-long section within the peaking reach known as Ruck-a-Chucky Rapids is a moderately steep and entrenched channel with debris constrictions and no bars.	A 1.2-mile-long section within the peaking reach known as Ruck-a-Chucky Rapids is a moderately steep and entrenched channel with <a href="#">large substrate debris constrictions (e.g., delivered to the channel by rockfalls)</a> and no bars.	<b>Clarification.</b> FERC staff's characterization of the large boulders within the Ruck-a-Chucky Rapids reach as 'debris' does not indicate the source. This is an important clarification because the 'debris' is natural hill slope and channel processes substrates. The source of the large boulders in this reach was described in Section 7.7.2.2 in PCWA's Final License Application.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Section 7.7.2.2, Page 7.7-3, February 2011.</i>
3.3.1 Geologic and Soil Resources 3.3.1.1 Affected Environment Geomorphology <i>Stream Channel Characterization</i>	Page 39 Paragraph 4 Line 2	Overall, the findings indicated that LWD was most prevalent in the upper reaches downstream of diversions and dams (particularly the Middle Fork American River downstream of French Meadows dam, 87.86 pieces per mile, and the Rubicon River downstream of Hell Hole dam, 24.01 pieces per mile).	Overall, the findings indicated that LWD was most prevalent in the upper reaches downstream of diversions and dams (particularly the Middle Fork American River <a href="#">downstream of between</a> French Meadows dam <a href="#">and Middle Fork Interbay</a> , 87.86 pieces per mile, and the Rubicon <a href="#">River, within the approximately 6 mile reach immediately downstream</a> of Hell Hole dam, 24.01 pieces per mile).	<b>Clarification.</b> The suggested revision clarifies the locations of the reaches where the abundances of large woody debris specified in the DEIS were documented during field surveys (Tables 4-1 and 4-16 in PCWA's 2007 Physical Habitat Characterization Report).  <i>Reference: PCWA, Pre-Application Document, Supporting Document G, 2006 Physical Habitat Characterization Report dated June 2007, Table 4-1 (Page 176) and Table 4-16 (Page 191), December 2007.</i>
3.3.1 Geologic and Soil Resources 3.3.1.1 Affected Environment Geomorphology <i>Stream Channel Characterization</i>	Page 45 Table 3.3.1-1 Footnote A	<sup>a</sup> Q – 1 TSR, Table G-1 (PCWA, 2011b).	<sup>a</sup> <a href="#">AQ</a> – 1 TSR, Table G-1 (PCWA, 2011b).	<b>Typographical Error.</b>



**PCWA's Recommended Revisions to FERC's Draft Environmental Impact Statement.**

DEIS SECTION	DEIS REFERENCE	DEIS STATEMENT	PCWA'S RECOMMENDED REVISIONS	PCWA'S RATIONALE
3.3.1 Geologic and Soil Resources 3.3.1.1 Affected Environment Geomorphology <i>Large Woody Debris Capture and Management in Project Reservoirs and Diversion Pools</i>	Page 47 Paragraph 3 Line 7	Larger amounts of LWD have been observed in Hell Hole reservoir (40 to 50 pieces) and French Meadows reservoir (100-150 pieces).	Larger amounts of LWD have been observed in Hell Hole reservoir (40 to 50 pieces) and French Meadows reservoir ( <del>400-450 pieces</del> <u>150-250 pieces</u> ).	<b>Clarification.</b> As summarized in Table 7.7.14 in PCWA's Final License Application, approximately 1 piece of large woody debris was observed every 200 to 300 feet along the French Meadows Reservoir shoreline. This is approximately 150-250 pieces in total for the entire shoreline.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Section 7.7.9, Page 7.7-22, Table 7.7.14, February 2011.</i>
3.3.1 Geologic and Soil Resources 3.3.1.2 Environmental Effects Sediment Management Channel Responses to Altered Flow Conditions	Page 54 Paragraph 1 Line 1	PCWA proposes new pulse flows that would affect channel morphology and bed surface textures in the bypassed.	PCWA proposes new pulse flows that would affect channel morphology and bed surface textures in the bypassed <u>reaches</u> .	<b>Typographical Error.</b>
3.3.1 Geologic and Soil Resources 3.3.1.2 Environmental Effects Sediment Management Channel Responses to Altered Flow Conditions	Page 56 Table 3.3.1-3 Rows 2 and 4 Column 4	<b>Project Location:</b> Middle Fork American River below French Meadows dam <b>Measurement Location:</b> USGS gage no. 11427500 and a new gage at French Meadows dam  <b>Project Location:</b> Rubicon River below Hell Hole reservoir dam <b>Measurement Location:</b> USGS gage no. 11428800 and new gages in the Rubicon River below Hell Hole reservoir dam	<b>Project Location:</b> Middle Fork American River below French Meadows dam <b>Measurement Location:</b> USGS gage no. 11427500 <u>beginning in Year 1 after license issuance</u> and a new gage at French Meadows dam <u>in year 3 after license issuance</u>  <b>Project Location:</b> Rubicon River below Hell Hole reservoir dam <b>Measurement Location:</b> <del>USGS gage no. 11428800 and New gages in the Rubicon River below Hell Hole reservoir dam at Hell Hole Dam Spillway, on the instream flow pipe, and on the low-level outlet in year 6 after license issuance.</del>	<b>Clarification.</b> It is unclear in Table 3.3.1-3 which compliance gages will be used at different periods of time in the implementation schedule. PCWA's suggested revisions provide clarification on the gages that will be used for compliance prior to completion of infrastructure modifications at the outlet structures, as described in Table 1 in the Streamflow and Reservoir Elevation Gaging Plan in PCWA's Submittal of Alternative Conditions. The recommended revisions are also consistent with the USDA-FS preliminary terms and conditions, filed on 8/4/11.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Submittal of Alternative Conditions, Streamflow and Reservoir Elevation Gaging Plan, Attachment D8, SREGP Table 1, Page 1, September 2011.</i>
3.3.1 Geologic and Soil Resources 3.3.1.2 Environmental Effects Channel Responses to Altered Flow Conditions <i>Our Analysis</i>	Page 58 Paragraph 5 Line 2	This later initiation of pulse flows would provide more time rainbow trout fry to emerge from the gravel prior to a planned high flow event.	This later initiation of pulse flows would <u>occur prior to FYLF breeding and will protect FYLF populations. The pulse flows will also occur prior to rainbow trout fry emergence in the bypass reaches (similar to natural conditions). Further, the magnitude of the pulse flows is designed to mobilize, but not scour, gravels, therefore, redds should be protected, provide more time rainbow trout fry to emerge from the gravel prior to a planned high flow event.</u>	<b>Clarification.</b> As discussed in Section 3.5, page 3.5-20 in PCWA's Supplemental Filing, the pulse flows are timed to start prior to FYLF breeding initiation'. In addition, as discussed in Section 3.5, page 3.5-17, the Alternative 1 pulse flows 'were designed to initiate motion of gravels (clean fines from gravels), but not excessively remove gravel substrates from the system.' Rainbow trout emergence from gravels in the bypass reaches occurs after initiation of the pulse flows (typically early to late June). However, pulse flows are designed to minimize deep scouring of gravels.  <i>References: PCWA, Final License Application, Supporting Document B, AQ 2 – Fish Populations Technical Study Report, February 2011. (Section 6.7.1, pg 23)</i>  <i>PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Section 3.5.9.2, Special-Status Species, Foothill Yellow-legged Frog, Pages 3.5-29 and 30, November 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Section 3.5.3.3, Bypass Reach Habitat, Rainbow Trout Spawning, Scour, Pages 3.5-17, November 2011.</i>
3.3.2 Aquatic Resources 3.3.2.1 Affected Environment Water Quantity <i>Bypassed and Peaking Reaches</i>	Page 80 Paragraph 2 Bullet 3	The permits and license also require:.... • minimum pool and minimum instream flow requirements (see table 3.3.2-2);	The permits and license also require:.... • minimum pool and minimum instream flow requirements (see tables <u>3.3.2-2 and 3.3-2-4, respectively</u> );	<b>Clarification.</b> In FERC's Draft EIS, minimum pool requirements are provided in Table 3.3.2-2 and the minimum stream maintenance flow requirements are provided in Table 3.3.2-4.  <i>Reference: FERC, Draft Environmental Impact Statement for Hydropower License, Section 3.2.2, Pages 65 and 75, July 2012.</i>
3.3.2 Aquatic Resources 3.3.2.1 Affected Environment Water Quantity <i>Bypassed and Peaking Reaches</i>	Page 81 Table 3.3.2-6 Row 5 Column 2	<b>Permit/License No.:</b> 13856 <b>Type of Use:</b>	<b>Permit/License No.:</b> 13856 <b>Type of Use:</b> <u>Irrigation, and Incidental Domestic, Recreational, Municipal and Industrial</u>	<b>Important Omission.</b> Table 3-15 in PCWA's Final License Application identifies the type of use for PCWA's water rights permit 13856.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Section 3.5.2.1, Page 3-37 and 3-38, Table 3-15, February 2011.</i>
3.3.2 Aquatic Resources 3.3.2.1 Affected Environment Water Quantity <i>Bypassed and Peaking Reaches</i>	Page 82 Table 3.3.2-6 Row 7 Column 1	<b>Permit/License No.:</b> 13855/13858	<b>Permit/License No.:</b> 13855 <del>/</del> 13858	<b>Clarification.</b> As correctly stated on page 80 in FERC's Draft EIS and in PCWA's Final License Application Table 3-15, the water rights permit numbers include 13855, 13856, 13857, and 13858.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Section 3.5.2.1, Page 3-37 and 3-38, Table 3-15, February 2011.</i>
3.3.2 Aquatic Resources 3.3.2.1 Affected Environment Water Quality	Page 86 Paragraph 3 Line 5	During the 2005 through 2008 sampling period, DO profiles in French Meadows and Hell Hole reservoirs showed levels typically greater than the 7 mg/L water quality objective in the upper portion of the water column, with lower levels that do not meet basin plan objectives in the hypolimnion nearer the reservoir bottom.	During the 2005 through 2008 sampling period, DO profiles in French Meadows and Hell Hole reservoirs showed levels typically greater than the 7 mg/L water quality objective in the upper portion of the water column, with lower levels that <u>periodically</u> do not meet basin plan objectives in the hypolimnion nearer the reservoir bottom.	<b>Clarification.</b> The additional text clarifies that all the DO measurements were not below basin plan objectives, consistent with the information provided in Section 7.5.10.1 in PCWA's Final License Application.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Section 7.5.10.1, Page 7.5-33 and 7.5-34, February 2011.</i>

**PCWA's Recommended Revisions to FERC's Draft Environmental Impact Statement.**

DEIS SECTION	DEIS REFERENCE	DEIS STATEMENT	PCWA'S RECOMMENDED REVISIONS	PCWA'S RATIONALE
3.3.2 Aquatic Resources 3.3.2.1 Affected Environment Fisheries <i>Special-status Aquatic Species</i>	Page 95 Paragraph 8 Line 1	Data from previous fish surveys indicates that hardhead may also be present in stream reaches where they were not found during the 2007–2009 fish population sampling. Hardhead were previously documented in the mainstem Middle Fork American River between French Meadows reservoir and the Middle Fork interbay, and in the Rubicon River upstream of Hell Hole reservoir and downstream of the dam to the Middle Fork American River (El Dorado National Forest, 1977; Tahoe National Forest, 2003, both as cited in PCWA, 2007b).	<del>Reference documents</del> <del>Data from previous fish surveys</del> indicates that hardhead may also be present in stream reaches where they were not found during the 2007-2009 fish population sampling. Hardhead were previously <del>reported to potentially be present documented</del> in the mainstem Middle Fork American River between French Meadows reservoir and the Middle Fork interbay, and in the Rubicon River upstream of Hell Hole reservoir and downstream of the dam to the Middle Fork American River (El Dorado National Forest, 1977; Tahoe National Forest, 2003, both as cited in PCWA, 2007b). <del>However, extensive sampling in 2007-2009 determined that hardhead are only present in the Middle Fork American River downstream of a large natural fish barrier located approximately 0.5 miles above Ralston afterbay and in the Rubicon River downstream of a natural low flow barrier, 5.4 miles upstream of Ralston afterbay.</del>	<b>Clarification.</b> The statement in the DEIS may have been deduced from statements in the PAD or other documents, but it is incorrect. The documents cited are very general, high level overview documents. The El Dorado National Forest, 1977, document does not mention hardhead. The Tahoe National Forest, 2003, document says that "hardhead has been identified from the Middle Fork American River downstream of French Meadows Reservoir and likely occurs throughout the river." It is true that hardhead were and are present in the Middle Fork American River, however, extensive sampling in 2007-2009 clearly determined that they are only present in the Middle Fork American River downstream of a large natural fish barrier located approximately 0.5 miles above Ralston Afterbay and in the Rubicon River below a low flow natural barrier 5.4 miles upstream of Ralston afterbay.  <i>References: PCWA, Final License Application, Supporting Document B, AQ 2 – Fish Populations Technical Study Report, February 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Final License Application, Supporting Document B, AQ 6 – Fish Passage Technical Study Report, February 2011, pg. 12.</i>  <i>PCWA, Final License Application, Section 7.5.8 Fish and Aquatic Resources – Riverine Fish; Table 7.5-7. Hardhead and Pikeminnow Observations from Quantitative and Qualitative Fish Sampling, page 7.5-9, February 2011.</i>
3.3.2 Aquatic Resources 3.3.2.2 Environmental Effects Protecting Water Quality During Sediment Management	Page 97 Paragraph 4 Line 5	During sediment removal activities at these two medium reservoirs, a portion of the removed material (preferentially selected within the preferred spawning particle size requirements of aquatic resources) would be placed in the new sediment augmentation areas below Middle Fork interbay.	During sediment removal activities at these two medium reservoirs, a portion of the removed material (preferentially selected within the preferred spawning particle size requirements of aquatic resources) would be placed in the new sediment augmentation areas below Middle Fork interbay <del>and Ralston afterbay.</del>	<b>Clarification.</b> Augmentation areas are proposed downstream of both Middle Fork interbay and Ralston afterbay dams.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Supporting Document A, Sediment Management Plan, Section 3.0, Page 3, February 2011.</i>
3.3.2 Aquatic Resources 3.3.2.2 Environmental Effects Minimum Instream Flows <i>Our Analysis</i>	Page 104 Table 3.3.2-8 Row 1 Columns 3-14	<b>Location:</b> Duncan Creek below Duncan diversion dam <b>Water Year Type:</b> E/C	<b>Location:</b> Duncan Creek below Duncan diversion dam <b>Water Year Type:</b> E/C <del>(add grey shading to row)</del>	<b>Clarification.</b> Enclosure 1 and Attachment C of PCWA's Supplemental Filing both specify 'or natural inflow' for minimum instream flows in Duncan Creek below the Duncan Creek Diversion Dam in all water year types.  <i>Reference: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Condition No. 22 – Minimum Streamflows, Page 16, August 2011.</i>
3.3.2 Aquatic Resources 3.3.2.2 Environmental Effects Minimum Instream Flows <i>Our Analysis</i>	Page 105 Table 3.3.2-8 Row 4 Columns 11-14	<b>Location:</b> American River below Middle Fork interbay dam <b>Water Year Type:</b> AN  May 1-14: 65(45) May 15-31: 65(45) June 1-14: 45(26) June 15-30: 45(26)	<b>Location:</b> American River below Middle Fork interbay dam <b>Water Year Type:</b> AN  May 1-14: 65( <del>45</del> ) May 15-31: 65( <del>45</del> ) June 1-14: 45( <del>26</del> ) June 15-30: 45( <del>26</del> )	<b>Clarification.</b> FERC's DEIS reflects the minimum instream flows recommended by the USDA-FS in their preliminary 4(e) conditions. PCWA believes that, in this case, the Forest Service made a typographical error.  <i>Reference: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Condition No. 22 – Minimum Streamflows, Page 17, August 2011.</i>
3.3.2 Aquatic Resources 3.3.2.2 Environmental Effects Minimum Instream Flows <i>Our Analysis</i>	Page 107 Paragraph 2 Line 5	For the reasons stated in the previous paragraph, this prevailing higher minimum flow would result in the Alternative 1 regime providing minor habitat enhancements compared with the proposed flow regime. However, we expect the primary factor that would limit the quality and quantity of aquatic habitat in the peaking reach to be flow fluctuations, rather than minimum flows. Daily peaking flow fluctuations would be maintained under both action alternatives, and effects of the new minimum flow regime in the peaking reach on fish and other aquatic biota are expected to be negligible because changes in wetted habitat area would be of very short duration and likely insufficient to affect behavior (e.g., foraging), food availability, or production of aquatic biota.	For the reasons stated in the previous paragraph, this prevailing higher minimum flow would result in the Alternative 1 regime providing minor habitat enhancements compared with the proposed flow regime. <del>However, the increased minimum flows in the proposed and Alternative 1 flow regimes compared to the existing conditions minimum flow (75 cfs) would substantially reduce the magnitude of flow fluctuations and would benefit aquatic biota. However, we expect the primary factor that would limit the quality and quantity of aquatic habitat in the peaking reach to be flow fluctuations, rather than minimum flows. Daily peaking flow fluctuations would be maintained under both action alternatives, and effects of the new minimum flow regime in the peaking reach on fish and other aquatic biota are expected to be negligible because changes in wetted habitat area would be of very short duration and likely insufficient to affect behavior (e.g., foraging), food availability, or production of aquatic biota.</del>	<b>Clarification.</b> The increased minimum flows in the peaking reach under both the Proposed and Alternative 1 minimum flows were designed to reduce flow fluctuations and benefit aquatic species compared to Existing Conditions.  <i>References: PCWA, Final License Application, Sections 8.5.1, 8.5.2, and 8.5.3, February 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Sections 3.5.1, 3.5.2, and 3.5.3, November 2011.</i>
3.3.2 Aquatic Resources 3.3.2.2 Environmental Effects Minimum Instream Flows <i>Our Analysis</i>	Page 108 Paragraph 2 Line 1	The proposed and Alternative 1 minimum instream flows are also designed to provide temperatures that support hardhead spawning.	The proposed and Alternative 1 minimum instream flows are also designed to provide temperatures that support hardhead <del>spawning.</del>	<b>Clarification.</b>  <i>References: PCWA, Final License Application, Section 8.5.9.1, Special-Status Species, Hardhead, Pages 8.5-30 and 31, February 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Section 3.5.9.1, Special-Status Species, Hardhead, Pages 3.5-29 and 30, November 2011.</i>

**PCWA's Recommended Revisions to FERC's Draft Environmental Impact Statement.**

DEIS SECTION	DEIS REFERENCE	DEIS STATEMENT	PCWA'S RECOMMENDED REVISIONS	PCWA'S RATIONALE
3.3.2 Aquatic Resources 3.3.2.2. Environmental Effects Effects of Ramping Rates on Aquatic Biota	Page 110 Table 3.3.2-9 Column 2 Row 5	<b>Location:</b> Rubicon River below Hell Hole reservoir dam <b>Schedule:</b> Day 9 <b>Action:</b> Reduce the flow to a minimum of 170 cfs.	<b>Location:</b> Rubicon River below Hell Hole reservoir dam <b>Schedule:</b> Day <del>9</del> <b>10</b> <b>Action:</b> Reduce the flow to a minimum of 170 cfs.	<b>Clarification.</b> PCWA's recommended changes are the same as the spill event down ramp schedule provided in PCWA's Alternative Filing, Attachment C4 – Condition No. 24, Page 23 and with the USDA-FS Preliminary Terms and Conditions, Condition No. 24, filed on 8/4/11.  <i>References: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Page 31, August 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Submittal of Alternative Conditions, Attachment C4, PCWA Alternative Condition No. 24 – Ramping Rates, Pages 22, September 2011.</i>
3.3.2 Aquatic Resources 3.3.2.2. Environmental Effects Effects of Ramping Rates on Aquatic Biota	Page 110 Table 3.3.2-9 Column 2 Rows 14-19	<b>Location:</b> Middle Fork American River below French Meadows reservoir dam <b>Schedule:</b> Day 1. Release a minimum flow of 400 cfs Day 5. Reduce the flow to a minimum of 275 cfs. Day 7. Reduce the flow to a minimum of 190 cfs. Day 9. Reduce the flow to a minimum of 115 cfs. Day 13. Reduce the flow to a minimum of 65 cfs. Day 15. Release minimum streamflow requirement.	<b>Location:</b> Middle Fork American River below French Meadows reservoir dam <b>Schedule:</b> Day <del>1</del> <b>1</b> . Release a minimum flow of 400 cfs Day <del>5</del> <b>2</b> . Reduce the flow to a minimum of 275 cfs. Day <del>7</del> <b>3</b> . Reduce the flow to a minimum of 190 cfs. Day <del>9</del> <b>4</b> . Reduce the flow to a minimum of 115 cfs. Day <del>13</del> <b>5</b> . Reduce the flow to a minimum of 65 cfs. Day <del>15</del> <b>7</b> . Release minimum streamflow requirement.	<b>Clarification.</b> PCWA's recommended changes are the same as the spill event down ramp schedule provided in PCWA's Alternative Filing, Attachment C4 – Condition No. 24, Page 23 and with the USDA-FS Preliminary Terms and Conditions, Condition No. 24, filed on 8/4/11.  <i>References: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Page 32, August 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Submittal of Alternative Conditions, Attachment C4, PCWA Alternative Condition No. 24 – Ramping Rates, Pages 23, September 2011.</i>
3.3.2 Aquatic Resources 3.3.2.2 Environmental Effects Effects of Ramping Rates on Aquatic Biota	Page 111 Paragraph 2 Line 1	Alternative 1 includes the ramping rates specified in Forest Service condition no. 24. Alternative 1 is similar to PCWA's proposal for ramping, except for an additional clause indicating that during the first two events when down ramp of spill flows occur at Hell Hole and French Meadow reservoirs, PCWA would test its ability to manage spill flow to provide the specified ramping rates.	Alternative 1 includes the ramping rates specified in Forest Service condition no. 24. Alternative 1 is similar to PCWA's proposal for ramping, except for <b>two elements: (1) it does not include the 900 cfs upper limit on Oxbow powerhouse releases; and (2) it includes</b> an additional clause indicating that during the first two events when down ramp of spill flows occur at Hell Hole and French Meadow reservoirs, PCWA would test its ability to manage spill flow to provide the specified ramping rates.	<b>Important Omission.</b> The 900 cfs upper limit on Oxbow powerhouse in the Proposed Action was "removed" in Alternative 1 and the USDA-FS Preliminary Terms and Conditions (Condition No. 22) so that the 1,000 cfs whitewater boating targets could be met. Alternative 1 and the USDA-FS Preliminary Terms and Conditions include higher minimum flows to reduce flow fluctuations in the peaking reach and eliminate the need for the 900 cfs cap.  <i>References: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Condition No. 22 – Minimum Streamflows, August 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Submittal of Alternative Conditions, Attachment C2, PCWA Alternative Condition No. 22 – Minimum Streamflows, Page 11, September 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Submittal of Alternative Conditions, Attachment C4, PCWA Alternative Condition No. 24 – Ramping Rates, Pages 23-24, September 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Submittal of Alternative Conditions, Attachment C8, PCWA Alternative Condition No. 39 – Recreation Streamflows in the Middle Fork American River below Oxbow Powerhouse, September 2011.</i>
3.3.2 Aquatic Resources 3.3.2.2 Environmental Effects Effects of Ramping Rates on Aquatic Biota <i>Our Analysis</i>	Page 112 Paragraph 1 Line 7	Ramping rates for the Middle Fork American River below Hell Hole dam and French Meadows dam would result in an additional 9 years (in the 33- year period of record) where spills are down ramped when they would not have been under existing conditions.	Ramping rates for the Middle Fork American River below Hell Hole dam and French Meadows dam would result in an additional <del>9</del> <b>10 or 11</b> years, <b>respectively</b> , (in the 33- year period of record) where spills are down ramped when they would not have been under existing conditions.	<b>Clarification.</b> Supplemental Table 3.7-4a identifies the correct number of days that spills would occur (with a spill magnitude of at least equal to or greater than the magnitude of the flow required to initiate motion of 25% of the gravel substrate). Lower magnitude spills occurred during the period of record that did not equal or exceed this threshold.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Page 3.8-9 to 3.7-10, Table 3.7-4a, November 2011.</i>



**PCWA's Recommended Revisions to FERC's Draft Environmental Impact Statement.**

DEIS SECTION	DEIS REFERENCE	DEIS STATEMENT	PCWA'S RECOMMENDED REVISIONS	PCWA'S RATIONALE
3.3.2 Aquatic Resources 3.3.2.2. Environmental Effects Effects of Ramping Rates on Aquatic Biota <i>Our Analysis</i>	Page 112 Paragraph 4 Line 1	We recognize that achieving the specified downramping rates at French Meadows and Hell Hole dam would likely entail some experimentation with operating infrastructure that controls releases from the dam, especially where that infrastructure is new. Providing for a test period, as specified in Alternative 1, would enable operational protocols to be developed based on experience. It would also serve to identify those spills that would be controllable by PCWA. However, we note that if ramping rates should vary from what may be specified in a new license, PCWA would also need to report any such variances to the Commission with documentation of the circumstances that resulted in the variance. It would be up to Commission staff to determine whether or not the variance represented a violation of the conditions of a license. If a change in ramping rates is recommended by PCWA following the results of the initial testing, we would expect the testing reports to be provided to the Commission to support any such change.	We recognize that achieving the specified downramping rates at French Meadows and Hell Hole dam would likely entail some experimentation with operating infrastructure that controls releases from the dam, especially where that infrastructure is new. Providing for a test period, as specified in Alternative 1, would enable operational protocols to be developed based on experience. It would also serve to identify those spills that would be controllable by PCWA. <del>However, we note that if ramping rates should vary from what may be specified in a new license, Any deviations from the ramping rates specified will not be considered violations during the first two spill management events but will be reported to the FS, CDFG, the State Water Board, and Commission within 30 days of the occurrence. At the conclusion of each of the first two spill events, the Licensee will submit a testing report to the FS, CDFG, and State Water Board. After the second spill event, the Licensee may recommend modifications to the down ramp of the spill flow schedule(s), if needed, and consultation with FS, CDFG, and State Water Board. Following FS, CDFG, and State Water Board approval, the Licensee will submit the recommended modification of down ramp spill flow schedule(s) to the Commission. Once FERC has approved the flow schedule with any suggested modification, as appropriate, PCWA would need to comply with the FERC approved schedule.</del> PCWA would also need to report any <del>such</del> variances to the Commission with documentation of the circumstances that resulted in the variance. It would be up to Commission staff to determine whether or not the variance represented a violation of the conditions of a license. <del>If a change in ramping rates is recommended by PCWA following the results of the initial testing, we would expect the testing reports to be provided to the Commission to support any such change.</del>	<b>Clarification.</b> PCWA's recommended revisions are consistent with the compliance criteria specified in PCWA's Alternative Filing, Attachment C4 – Condition No. 24, Pages 21-22 and is the same as the USDA-FS Preliminary Terms and Conditions, Condition No. 24. The recommended changes clarify that PCWA will be testing their ability to provide the specified ramping rates during the first two spill events and deviations from the schedule will not be considered compliance violations.  <i>References: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, August 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Submittal of Alternative Conditions, Attachment C4, PCWA Alternative Condition No. 24 – Ramping Rates, Pages 21-22, September 2011.</i>
3.3.2 Aquatic Resources 3.3.2.2 Environmental Effects Fish Entrainment	Page 122 Paragraph 5 Line 5	The screens would have 1-mm-diameter openings.	The screens would have <del>1-mm-diameter</del> openings that are consistent with CDFG and other agency requirements to protect entrainment of fish (current CDFG screen spacing requirements are 1.75 mm for reaches where steelhead fry are present or 2.38 mm for reaches without steelhead fry).	<b>Updated Information.</b> Screen slot spacing will be designed, at a minimum, to comply with CDFG requirements (currently these requirements are 1.75 mm for reaches with steelhead present or 2.38 mm where steelhead fry are not present) and any other agency requirements that are applicable. The 1 mm spacing was a preliminary design that likely will be modified during final design in concurrence with the applicable agencies.  <i>References: California Department of Fish and Game, Fisheries Engineering Projects and Information, Fish Screen Criteria, <a href="http://www.dfg.ca.gov/fish/Resources/Projects/Engin/Engin_ScreenCriteria.asp">http://www.dfg.ca.gov/fish/Resources/Projects/Engin/Engin_ScreenCriteria.asp</a></i>  <i>National Marine Fisheries Service, Southwest Region, Fish Screening Criteria for Anadromous Salmonids, January 1997.</i>
3.3.2 Aquatic Resources 3.3.2.3 Cumulative Effects Central Valley Steelhead	Page 129 Paragraph 4 Line 3	Since Nimbus and Folsom dams were constructed, two new barriers to upstream fish passage have developed in the peaking reach downstream of the project—"Tunnel Chute" at RM 22.9, which was created by mining activity in the 1880s and "Ruck-a-Chucky rapids" at RM 10.8, created by a landslide in the 1940s.	<del>Since Nimbus and Folsom dams were constructed, two new large, non-Project barriers to upstream fish passage have developed exist</del> in the peaking reach downstream of the project—"Tunnel Chute" at RM 22.9, which was created by mining activity in the 1880s and "Ruck-a-Chucky rapids" at RM 10.8, created by a landslide in the 1940s. <del>These barriers pre-date the construction of Nimbus and Folsom Dams.</del>	<b>Clarification.</b> PCWA's recommended revisions clarify that these barriers were present prior to the creation of Nimbus Dam (1955) and Folsom Dam (1955). PCWA has also recommended revising the river mile location of Ruck-a-Chucky rapids to be consistent with PCWA's AQ 6 – Passage Barrier Technical Study Report.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Supporting Document B, AQ 6 – Fish Passage Technical Study Report, February 2011.</i>
3.3.3 Terrestrial Resources 3.3.3.1 Affected Environment Special-Status Plants	Page 136 Table 3.3.3-2 Row 1 Column 5	<b>Species Name:</b> Stebbins' phacelia ( <i>Phacelia stebbinsii</i> ) <b>Occurrence Notes:</b> Forty-nine populations (112 acres) were documented within the study area around project facilities including: • 44 populations in the vicinity of Hell Hole Reservoir (about 2.4 to 4.7 million individuals)...	<b>Species Name:</b> Stebbins' phacelia ( <i>Phacelia stebbinsii</i> ) <b>Occurrence Notes:</b> <del>Forty-nine</del> <del>Sixty-three</del> populations ( <del>112-115</del> acres) were documented within the study area around project facilities including: • <del>44</del> <del>58</del> populations in the vicinity of Hell Hole Reservoir (about <del>2.4</del> <del>2.5</del> to <del>4.7</del> <del>5.0</del> million individuals)...	<b>Updated Information.</b> Table 7.6-2 of the Application for New License was updated in the Supplemental Filing (Table 3.6-1) to include additional Stebbins' phacelia populations documented around Hell Hole Reservoir during supplemental botanical surveys conducted in 2011.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Table 3.6-1, Page 3.6-1, November 2011.</i>
3.3.3 Terrestrial Resources 3.3.3.1 Affected Environment Riparian Vegetation	Page 140 Table 3.3.3-4 Rows 2, 3, 11 Columns 3, 4	<b>Large Reservoirs</b> Hell Hole reservoir Total Miles of Vegetated Shoreline: 9.1 Total Miles of Shoreline: 11  French Meadows reservoir Total Miles of Vegetated Shoreline: 8.5 Total Miles of Shoreline: 9  <b>Total</b> Total Miles of Vegetated Shoreline: 19.7 Total Miles of Shoreline: ~26	<b>Large Reservoirs</b> Hell Hole Reservoir Total Miles of <del>Riparian</del> Vegetated Shoreline: <del>9.4</del> <del>2.3</del> Total Miles of Shoreline: <del>44</del> <del>13</del>  French Meadows Reservoir Total Miles of <del>Riparian</del> Vegetated Shoreline: <del>8.5</del> <del>0.6</del> Total Miles of Shoreline: <del>9</del> <del>10</del>  <b>Total</b> Total Miles of <del>Riparian</del> Vegetated Shoreline: <del>49.7</del> <del>5</del> Total Miles of Shoreline: <del>26</del> <del>30</del>	<b>Updated Information.</b> Table 3.3.3-4 is based on information provided in PCWA's Final License Application Table 7.8-1.  <i>Reference: Final License Application, Supporting Document B, AQ-10 Riparian Resources Technical Study Report, February 2011.</i>

**PCWA's Recommended Revisions to FERC's Draft Environmental Impact Statement.**

DEIS SECTION	DEIS REFERENCE	DEIS STATEMENT	PCWA'S RECOMMENDED REVISIONS	PCWA'S RATIONALE
3.3.3 Terrestrial Resources 3.3.3.1 Affected Environment Wildlife	Page 143 Paragraph 2 Line 5	Eight osprey nests were identified during osprey nest relicensing surveys. This includes six active nests identified during osprey surveys in the study area—three nests at French Meadows reservoir and three nests at Hell Hole reservoir. In addition, numerous incidental osprey observations were recorded during implementation of other technical studies, and two additional active osprey nests were observed at French Meadows reservoir.	<del>Eight</del> <b>Ten</b> osprey nests were identified during <del>osprey nest relicensing surveys</del> <b>the review of existing information and osprey nest surveys conducted for the relicensing</b> . This includes six active nests identified during osprey surveys in the study area—three nests at French Meadows reservoir and three nests at Hell Hole reservoir. In addition, numerous incidental osprey observations were recorded during implementation of other technical studies, and <del>two</del> <b>four</b> additional active osprey nests were observed at French Meadows reservoir.	<b>Updated Information.</b> The total number of osprey nests reported in the Supplemental Biological Technical Study Report – 2011 is ten, including six nests identified during relicensing surveys and four additional nests documented as incidental observations.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Attachment 2A, Supplemental Biological Technical Study Report – 2011, Map 6, November 2011.</i>
3.3.3 Terrestrial Resources 3.3.3.2 Environmental Effects Vegetation <i>Noxious Weed Management</i>	Page 163 Paragraph 2 Line 9	This two-phased approach is omitted from the Alternative 1 plan, and all areas would be treated equally if noxious weeds are found within the project boundary.	This two-phased approach is omitted from the Alternative 1 plan, and <del>all areas would be treated equally if noxious weeds are found within the project boundary</del> <b>specific treatment of noxious weed populations identified within the project boundary would be developed during annual consultation with USDA-FS.</b>	<b>Clarification.</b> The VIPMP included in PCWA's Supplemental Filing requires consultation with USDA-FS to develop specific treatment of noxious weed populations within the Project boundaries. The USDA-FS approved the VIPMP in a letter dated January 12, 2012.  <i>References: PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Attachment 1A, Vegetation and Integrated Pest Management Plan, Section 3.2.1, Page 6, November 2011.</i>  <i>USDA-FS. 2012. Letter from Kathryn Hardy, Forest Supervisor, Eldorado National Forest to Kimberly Bose, Secretary, Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, regarding three management plans developed for the Middle Fork American River Project (FERC No. 2079). January 12, 2012.</i>
3.3.3 Terrestrial Resources 3.3.3.2 Environmental Effects Vegetation <i>Protection of Riparian Vegetation along Bypassed and Peaking Reaches</i>	Page 167 Paragraph 3 Line 7	Forest Service 4(e) and California Fish and Game 10(j) recommendation 28 specify that the plan needs to be finalized and submitted for approval to the Forest Service.	Forest Service 4(e) and California Fish and Game 10(j) recommendation 28 specify that the plan needs to be finalized and submitted for approval to the Forest Service, <del>CDFG, and State Water Board.</del>	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>References: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Condition No. 28 – Monitoring Program, August 2011.</i>  <i>CDFG, Response to Ready for Environmental Analysis Federal Power Act Section 10(j) and 10(a) RECOMMENDATIONS Middle Fork American River Project (FERC Project No. 2079-069), August 2011.</i>
3.3.3 Terrestrial Resources 3.3.3.2 Environmental Effects Vegetation <i>Effects of Proposed Changes in Hell Hole Reservoir Operations on Vegetation</i>	Page 169 Paragraph 5 Line 4	In Area 2a, the overall frequency of inundation during the growing season for Stebbins' phacelia for all water year types combined would increase from 11 (existing conditions) to 14 years (proposed operation) over the period of record (33 years modeled). This increase in inundation frequency would occur in above normal and below normal water years. The average duration of inundation (average days per year) would increase under the proposed action by 8 days in wet years, by 9 days in above normal years, and by 8 days in below normal years. Similar to existing conditions, Area 2a would not be inundated in dry or critical water years under the proposed action.	In Area 2a, the overall frequency of inundation during the growing season for Stebbins' phacelia for all water year types combined would increase from 11 (existing conditions) to <del>14</del> <b>13</b> years (proposed operation) over the period of record (33 years modeled). This increase in inundation frequency would occur in above normal and below normal water years. The average duration of inundation (average days per year) would increase under the proposed action by <del>8</del> <b>6</b> days in wet years, by <del>9</del> <b>21</b> days in above normal years, and by <del>8</del> <b>7</b> days in below normal years. Similar to existing conditions, Area 2a would not be inundated in dry or critical water years under the proposed action.	<b>Updated Information.</b> Updated data are provided in PCWA's Supplemental Filing.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Section 3.6.1.3, Page 3.6-9, November 2011.</i>
3.3.3 Terrestrial Resources 3.3.3.2 Environmental Effects Vegetation <i>Our Analysis</i>	Page 170 Table 3.3.3-6 Row 2 Columns 4 and 5	<b>Area:</b> Area 2a <b>Area (acres):</b> 2.47 <b>No. Individuals:</b> 54,000-108,000	<b>Area:</b> Area 2a <b>Area (acres):</b> <del>2.47</del> <b>2.0</b> <b>No. Individuals:</b> <del>54,000-108,000</del> <b>53,000-106,000</b>	<b>Updated Information.</b> Updated data are provided in PCWA's Supplemental Filing.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Table 3.6-3, Page 3.6-9, November 2011.</i>
3.3.3 Terrestrial Resources 3.3.3.2 Environmental Effects Vegetation <i>Our Analysis</i>	Page 170 Table 3.3.3-6 Row 3 Columns 2 and 3	<b>Area:</b> Area 2b <b>Area (acres):</b> 4.55 <b>No. Individuals:</b> 99,000-198,000	<b>Area:</b> Area 2b <b>Area (acres):</b> <del>4.55</del> <b>5.0</b> <b>No. Individuals:</b> <del>99,000-198,000</del> <b>117,000-234,000</b>	<b>Updated Information.</b> The Area 2b data cited in the DEIS are outdated. Updated data are provided in the Supplemental Filing.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Table 3.6-3, Page 3.6-10, November 2011.</i>
3.3.3 Terrestrial Resources 3.3.3.2 Environmental Effects Vegetation <i>Effects of Proposed Changes in Hell Hole Reservoir Operations on Vegetation</i>	Page 171 Paragraph 1 Line 12	The duration of inundation in Area 2a would increase by from 8 to 9 days in wet, above average, and below average water years, and in Area 2b by 22 days in wet and 15 days in above average water years compared with existing conditions.	The duration of inundation <del>for Alternative 1</del> in Area 2a would increase by <del>from 8 to 9 days</del> <b>6 days</b> in wet, <b>21 days</b> in above <del>average normal</del> , and <b>7 days</b> in below <del>average normal</del> water years, and in Area 2b by 22 days in wet and 15 days in above <del>average normal</del> water years compared with existing conditions.	<b>Updated Information.</b> The average duration of inundation under existing and future demand and existing conditions is provided in Table 3.6-4 in PCWA's Supplemental Filing.  <i>References: PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Page 3.6-13, Table 3.6-4, November 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Final License Application, Section 7.5.3.2, Page 7.3-5, February 2011.</i>
3.3.3 Terrestrial Resources 3.3.3.2 Environmental Effects Vegetation <i>Effects of Proposed Changes in Project Facilities on Vegetation</i>	Page 171 Paragraph 2 Line 2	In addition, the PCWA proposed and Alternative 1 Recreation Plans both call for the removal of two campsites at Hell Hole Campground, and all 13 campsites at the Upper Hell Hole Campground.	In addition, the PCWA proposed and Alternative 1 Recreation Plans both call for the removal of <del>two campsites at Hell Hole Campground, and all 13 campsites at the Upper Hell Hole Campground</del> . <b>And while PCWA's proposed Recreation plan calls for removal of two campsites at Hell Hole Campground, the Alternative 1 Recreation Plan proposes to remove either 3 sites or convert Hell Hole Campground to a group camp area.</b>	<b>Clarification.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Recreation Plan (July 2011), Page 10; included as attachment to USDA-FS Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions (filed with FERC on August 5, 2011).</i>

**PCWA's Recommended Revisions to FERC's Draft Environmental Impact Statement.**

DEIS SECTION	DEIS REFERENCE	DEIS STATEMENT	PCWA'S RECOMMENDED REVISIONS	PCWA'S RATIONALE
3.3.3 Terrestrial Resources 3.3.3.2 Environmental Effects Vegetation <i>Our Analysis</i>	Page 172 Paragraph 2	PCWA's proposed reduction in the recreation area at Hell Hole Vista that would undergo vegetation management and maintenance would reduce the project-related effects on this population by about 80 percent, removing about 38,300–76,600 individual Stebbins' phacelia plants from potential project-related effects. This would represent a substantial protective measure for this special status species population compared to existing conditions. The Alternative 1 VIPMP does not specify surveys for a portion of the French Meadows Campground Water Supply Facility Access Road that was not included in PCWA's special-status plant surveys conducted for the relicensing of the project, but that could be affected by project activities. Routine maintenance along this road could potentially affect special-status plants, if present, and surveys in this area would address any potential effects from project activities.	PCWA's proposed reduction in the recreation area at Hell Hole Vista that would undergo vegetation management and maintenance would reduce the project-related effects on this population by about 80 percent, removing about 38,300–76,600 individual Stebbins' phacelia plants from potential project-related effects. This would represent a substantial protective measure for this special status species population compared to existing conditions. <del>The Alternative 1 VIPMP does not specify surveys for a portion of the French Meadows Campground Water Supply Facility Access Road that was not included in PCWA's special-status plant surveys conducted for the relicensing of the project, but that could be affected by project activities. Routine maintenance along this road could potentially affect special-status plants, if present, and surveys in this area would address any potential effects from project activities.</del>	<b>Updated Information.</b> Special-status plant surveys were conducted on the French Meadows Campground Water Supply Access Road during supplemental botanical surveys conducted in June and July 2011. Results of these surveys were provided in PCWA's Supplemental Filing. In addition, PCWA has committed to conduct special-status plant surveys every five years at all MFP facilities identified in Table 5.1 of the Alternative 1 Vegetation and Integrated Pest Management Plan, including the French Meadows Campground Water Supply Facility Access Road.  <i>References: PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Attachment 2A, Supplemental Biological Technical Study Report – 2011, Map 6, November 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Attachment 1A, Vegetation and Integrated Pest Management Plan, Table 1, November 2011.</i>
3.3.3 Terrestrial Resources 3.3.3.2 Environmental Effects Wildlife <i>Protection of Newly Designated Special Status Plants and Wildlife</i>	Page 182 Paragraph 3 Line 7	Special status plant and raptor nest and winter roost surveys would be conducted at 5 year intervals, which would include any newly designated special status plants and raptors.	Special status plant <del>and raptor nest and winter roost</del> surveys would be conducted at 5 year intervals, which would include any newly designated special status plants. <del>and raptors.</del>	<b>Clarification.</b> Raptor surveys will be conducted prior to implementation of ground disturbing activities during the raptor nesting season (February 15-September 15). Newly designated raptor nests would be identified during these surveys.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Appendix A – Modified or New Facility Construction Activities and Concept Designs, Table A-2, November 2011.</i>
3.3.3 Terrestrial Resources 3.3.3.2 Environmental Effects Riparian Wildlife	Page 184 Paragraph 3 Line 1	Under the proposed action, modification of existing and new facility construction includes permanent loss of riparian habitat at the following locations: Duncan Creek diversion dam modification (0.03 acre), a new water supply at French Meadow North (0.02 acre), South Fork Long Canyon Creek diversion dam modification (0.01 acre), a new stream gage downstream of South Fork Long Canyon Creek diversion dam (0.03 acre), Hell Hole dam outlet works modification (0.24 acre), and a new stream gage downstream of the Middle Fork interbay dam (0.01 acre).	Under the proposed action, modification of existing and new facility construction includes permanent loss of riparian habitat at the following locations: Duncan Creek diversion dam modification (0.03 acre), a new water supply at French Meadow North (0.02 acre), South Fork Long Canyon Creek diversion dam modification ( <del>0.04</del> <u>0.03</u> acre), a new stream gage downstream of South Fork Long Canyon Creek diversion dam ( <del>0.03</del> <u>0.01</u> acre), Hell Hole dam outlet works modification (0.24 acre), and a new stream gage downstream of the Middle Fork interbay dam (0.01 acre).	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Section 3.6.3.3, Page 3.6-22, November 2011.</i>
3.3.3 Terrestrial Resources 3.3.4.2 Environmental Effects Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle <i>Our Analysis</i>	Page 191 Paragraph 5	Because the project area is unlikely to support elderberry plants, the valley elderberry longhorn beetle is unlikely to be present at or affected by the project. If elderberry plants are identified in the project, further coordination with FWS to identify further minimization measures (e.g., pre-activity survey, buffers) would be most protective for the valley elderberry longhorn beetle.	Because the project area is unlikely to support elderberry plants, the valley elderberry longhorn beetle is unlikely to be present at or affected by the project. If elderberry plants are identified in the project <del>below 3,000 foot elevation and could be adversely affected by Project operation and maintenance activities</del> , further coordination with FWS to identify further minimization measures (e.g., pre-activity survey, buffers) would be most protective for the valley elderberry longhorn beetle.	<b>Clarification.</b> Consultation with USFWS should only be required if the MFP could potentially result in adverse effects to valley elderberry longhorn beetle or their habitat (defined by USFWS as elderberry shrubs below 3,000 foot-elevation).  <i>Reference: US Fish and Wildlife Service. 1999. Conservation Guidelines for the Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle. Sacramento, CA.</i>
3.3.5 Recreation and Land Use 3.3.5.1 Affected Environment Recreation <i>Project Area Recreation Resources</i>	Page 200 Paragraph 1 Line 4	Except for group campgrounds, visitor use and capacity data indicates the recreation facilities at French Meadows and Hell Hole reservoirs are underutilized on weekdays, weekends, and holidays. By comparison, the remaining recreation facilities are not underutilized and experience occupancy rates ranging from as low as 7 percent on weekdays to 75 percent on weekends.	Except for group campgrounds, visitor use and capacity data indicates <del>all of the Project</del> recreation facilities <del>at French Meadows and Hell Hole reservoirs</del> are underutilized on weekdays, weekends, and holidays. <del>The group campgrounds experience occupancy rates ranging from 10% on weekdays to 75% on weekends.</del> By comparison, the remaining recreation facilities are underutilized and experience occupancy rates ranging from as low as <del>72</del> percent on weekdays to <del>75</del> <u>43</u> percent on weekends.	<b>Clarification.</b> The revisions more accurately characterize utilization rates at the Project recreation facilities.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Table 7.9-3, February 2011.</i>
3.3.5 Recreation and Land Use 3.3.5.1 Affected Environment Recreation <i>Recreation in River Reaches Whitewater Recreation</i>	Page 203 Table 3.3.5-2 Row 6 Column 4	<b>Reach:</b> Middle Fork interbay dam to Ralston afterbay <b>Optimum flow (cfs):</b> 550-550	<b>Reach:</b> Middle Fork interbay dam to Ralston afterbay <b>Optimum flow (cfs):</b> <del>550</del> <u>500</u> -550	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Supporting Document B, REC 4 – Contingency Whitewater Boating Study Technical Study Report, February 2011.</i>
3.3.5 Recreation and Land Use 3.3.5.1 Affected Environment Recreation <i>Recreation in River Reaches Whitewater Recreation</i>	Page 204 Table 3.3.5-3 Row 2 Column 2	<b>Reach:</b> Mammoth Bar and Murderer's Bar runs (Middle Fork American River from Ruck-a-Chucky recreation area to Murderer's Bar) <b>Class:</b> I-II	<b>Reach:</b> Mammoth Bar and Murderer's Bar runs (Middle Fork American River from Ruck-a-Chucky recreation area to Murderer's Bar) <b>Class:</b> <del>I-II</del> <u>I-III</u>	<b>Clarification.</b> The Mammoth Bar run is rated class I-II, and the Murderer's Bar run is rated class II-III. When combined, the overall class rating for both runs should be I-III.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Supporting Document B, REC 4 – Stream-Based Recreation Opportunities Technical Study Report, February 2011.</i>
3.3.5 Recreation and Land Use 3.3.5.1 Affected Environment Recreation <i>Recreation in River Reaches Angling</i>	Page 204 Paragraph 1 Line 6	The peaking reach is boated privately and commercially; however commercial boating accounts for the vast majority of use (17,110 out of 25,683 boaters in 2007.)	The peaking reach is boated privately and commercially; however commercial boating accounts for the vast majority of use (17,110 out of <del>25,683</del> <u>17,683</u> boaters in 2007.)	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Supporting Document B, REC 4 – Stream-Based Recreation Opportunities Technical Study Report, February 2011.</i>
3.3.5 Recreation and Land Use 3.3.5.1 Affected Environment Recreation <i>Recreation in River Reaches Angling</i>	Page 205 Table 3.3.5-4 Row 3 Column 3	<b>Month:</b> Mar <b>Water Year Type, Above Normal:</b> 1.38	<b>Month:</b> Mar <b>Water Year Type, Above Normal:</b> <del>1.38</del> <u>13.8</u>	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Supporting Document B, REC 4 – Stream-Based Recreation Opportunities, Table REC 4-27, February 2011.</i>



**PCWA's Recommended Revisions to FERC's Draft Environmental Impact Statement.**

DEIS SECTION	DEIS REFERENCE	DEIS STATEMENT	PCWA'S RECOMMENDED REVISIONS	PCWA'S RATIONALE
3.3.5 Recreation and Land Use 3.3.5.2 Environmental Effects Recreation <i>Our Analysis</i> Minimum Pool Elevations	Page 224 Table 3.3.5-7 Row 4-6 Column 7	<b>Water Year Type:</b> Dry <b>Alternative 1 (WSE in feet)</b> <b>Sept-May:</b> 5,152' <sup>a</sup> <b>Alternative 1 (WSE in feet)</b> <b>Sept-May:</b> 5,152' <sup>a</sup> <b>Alternative 1 (WSE in feet)</b> <b>Sept-May:</b> 5,150' <sup>a</sup>	<b>Water Year Type:</b> Dry <b>Alternative 1 (WSE in feet)</b> <b>Sept-May:</b> 5,152' <sup>a</sup> <b>Alternative 1 (WSE in feet)</b> <b>Sept-May:</b> 5,152' <sup>a</sup> <b>Alternative 1 (WSE in feet)</b> <b>Sept-May:</b> 5,150' <sup>a</sup>	<b>Typographical Error.</b>
3.3.5 Recreation and Land Use 3.3.5.2 Environmental Effects Boat Ramp Extensions	Page 226 Paragraph 3 Line 11	Similarly, the Alternative 1 Recreation Plan indicates it may not be feasible to extend the French Meadows ramp to the specified elevation of 5,175 feet.	<del>Similarly, the Alternative 1 Recreation Plan indicates it may not be feasible to extend the French Meadows ramp to the specified elevation of 5,175 feet.</del>	<b>Clarification.</b> PCWA Supplemental Filing does not state that the French Meadows boat ramp extension may not be feasible. Feasibility comments in the Supplemental Filing apply only to the Hell Hole boat ramp extension.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Section 3.9.3.2 – Boat Ramp Improvements, Pages 3.9-21, November 2011.</i>
3.3.5 Recreation and Land Use 3.3.5.2 Environmental Effects Recreation Boat Ramp Extensions <i>Our Analysis</i>	Page 227 Paragraph 2 Line 6	The ramps at French Meadows reservoir currently provide boating access to the reservoir throughout the peak recreation season in all but critical and extremely critical water year types when the ramps are generally functional until the beginning of September and mid-July, respectively. The ramps are currently functional through the extended recreation season only in wet, above normal, and below normal water year types. During critical and extreme water year types PCWA proposes and Forest Service condition no. 37 specifies minimum water surface elevation during the peak recreation season of 5,152 feet and 5,175 feet, respectively. If the French Meadows boat ramp were extended to an elevation of 5,175 feet, as proposed by PCWA and specified in the Forest Service condition no. 37 would provide additional reservoir boating during the peak recreation season in critical and extreme critical water year types. If the boat ramp were extended to 5,175 feet, the boat ramp would not be functional if PCWA's proposed minimum water surface elevation of 5,152 feet were implemented.	The ramps at French Meadows reservoir currently provide boating access to the reservoir throughout the peak recreation season in all but critical and extremely critical water year types when the ramps are generally functional until the beginning of September and mid-July, respectively. The ramps are currently functional through the extended recreation season only in wet, above normal, and below normal water year types. During critical and extreme water year types PCWA proposes and Forest Service condition no. 37 specifies minimum water surface elevation during the peak recreation season of <del>5,152 5,157 feet and 5,175 feet, respectively.</del> If the French Meadows boat ramp were extended to an elevation of 5,175 feet, as <del>proposed by PCWA and</del> specified in the Forest Service condition no. 37 <del>it</del> would provide additional reservoir boating during the peak recreation season in critical and extreme critical water year types. If the boat ramp were extended to 5,175 feet, the boat ramp would not be functional if PCWA's proposed minimum water surface elevation of <del>5,152 5,157 feet</del> were implemented.	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>References: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Condition No. 37 – Reservoir Minimum Pool Elevations and Reservoir Levels Recreation Objectives Condition, August 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Final License Application, Supporting Document A – Aquatic Resources – Measures, Instream Flow and Reservoir Minimum Pool Measure, Page 11, February 2011.</i>
3.3.5 Recreation and Land Use 3.3.5.2 Environmental Effects Boat Ramp Extensions <i>Our Analysis</i>	Page 228 Paragraph 1 Line 1	The ramp at Hell Hole reservoir currently provides boating access to the reservoir throughout the peak recreation season in all water year types. In general, the ramps are currently functional through the extended recreation season, in wet, above normal and below normal and dry water year types.	The ramp at Hell Hole reservoir currently provides boating access to the reservoir throughout the peak <del>and extended</del> recreation season in <del>all wet, above normal, and below normal</del> water year types. <del>In general, the ramps are currently functional through the extended recreation season, in wet, above normal and below normal and dry water year types. In dry and critical dry water year types, the boat ramp is often only available for a portion of the recreation season. In extreme critical water year types, the boat ramp is generally not available.</del>	<b>Clarification.</b> The corrected text more accurately represents the boat ramp conditions at Hell Hole Reservoir.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Appendix C2c, Figures C2c-1 – C2c-6, February 2011.</i>
3.3.5 Recreation and Land Use 3.3.5.2 Environmental Effects <i>Whitewater Boating</i>	Page 237 Table 3.3.5-10 Row 5 Column 2	<b>Water year type:</b> Below normal <b>Flow (cfs):</b> 900	<b>Water year type:</b> Below normal <b>Flow (cfs):</b> <del>900</del> 1000	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Instream Flow and Reservoir Minimum Pool Measure, Page 10, February 2011.</i>
3.3.5 Recreation and Land Use 3.3.5.2 Environmental Effects <i>Whitewater Boating</i>	Page 237 Table 3.3.5-10 Footnote A	<sup>a</sup> As measured below the confluence of Middle and North Forks of the American River unless otherwise specified (USGS gage no. 11433300).	<del><sup>a</sup> As measured below the confluence of Middle and North Forks of the American River unless otherwise specified (USGS gage no. 11433300). Flow compliance measured at the Middle Fork American River near Foresthill USGS Gage (No. 11433300).</del>	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Condition No. 39 – Recreation Streamflows in the Middle Fork American River Below Oxbow Powerhouse, August 2011.</i>
3.3.5 Recreation and Land Use 3.3.5.2 Environmental Effects Recreation Recreational Programs <i>Whitewater Boating</i>	Page 238 Table 3.3.5-11 Row 9 Column 4	<b>Weekends</b> <b>Water Year Type:</b> Below Normal <b>Saturday before Memorial Day-Labor Day:</b> Saturdays except for Western States 100 date	<b>Weekends</b> <b>Water Year Type:</b> Below Normal <b>Saturday before Memorial Day-Labor Day:</b> Saturdays (except for Western States 100 <del>date and Tevis Cup Race</del> ) <del>and Sundays</del>	<b>Clarification.</b>  <i>Reference: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Condition No. 39 – Recreation Streamflows in the Middle Fork American River below Oxbow Powerhouse, August 2011.</i>
3.3.5 Recreation and Land Use 3.3.5.2 Environmental Effects <i>Whitewater Boating</i>	Page 239 Table 3.3.5-11 Footnote A	<sup>a</sup> As measured below the confluence of Middle and North Forks of the American River (USGS gage no. 11433300).	<del><sup>a</sup> As measured below the confluence of Middle and North Forks of the American River (USGS gage no. 11433300). Flow compliance measured at the Middle Fork American River near Foresthill USGS Gage (No. 11433300).</del>	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Condition No. 39 – Recreation Streamflows in the Middle Fork American River Below Oxbow Powerhouse, August 2011.</i>
3.3.5 Recreation and Land Use 3.3.5.2 Environmental Effects <i>Whitewater Boating</i> <i>Our Analysis</i>	Page 240 Paragraph 1 Line 8	PCWA's proposed instream flows for Long Canyon Creek would increase boating opportunities during wet water year types compared to existing conditions. Although PCWA's instream flows would result in fewer boating opportunities on this reach during below normal and above normal water years, it would maintain boating opportunities available during wet water years.	PCWA's proposed instream flows for Long Canyon Creek would increase boating opportunities during wet water year types compared to existing conditions. <del>Although PCWA's instream flows would result in fewer boating opportunities on this reach during below normal and above normal water years, it would maintain boating opportunities available during wet water years.</del>	<b>Clarification.</b> The corrected text more accurately represents the boating opportunities in Long Canyon Creek. Under existing, proposed, and Alternative 1 conditions boating opportunities only exist in wet water year types.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Figure 8.9-1b, February 2011.</i>
3.3.5 Recreation and Land Use 3.3.5.2 Environmental Effects <i>Whitewater Boating</i>	Page 240 Table 3.3.5-12 Footnote A	<sup>a</sup> As measured below the confluence of Middle and North Forks of the American River (USGS gage no. 11433300).	<del><sup>a</sup> As measured below the confluence of Middle and North Forks of the American River (USGS gage no. 11433300). Flow compliance measured at the Middle Fork American River near Foresthill USGS Gage (No. 11433300).</del>	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Condition No. 39 – Recreation Streamflows in the Middle Fork American River Below Oxbow Powerhouse, August 2011.</i>

## PCWA's Recommended Revisions to FERC's Draft Environmental Impact Statement.

DEIS SECTION	DEIS REFERENCE	DEIS STATEMENT	PCWA'S RECOMMENDED REVISIONS	PCWA'S RATIONALE
3.3.5 Recreation and Land Use 3.3.5.2 Environmental Effects <i>Whitewater Boating Our Analysis</i>	Page 241 Paragraph 1 Line 2	Boating opportunities between French Meadows dam and Middle Fork interbay are not currently available and would not be available in the drier years if the project were operated under PCWA's proposed instream flows because flows would exceed the suitable boating flow range during May and June due to the cumulative effect of pulse flows that would be released from French Meadows reservoir and Duncan Creek.	Boating opportunities between French Meadows dam and Middle Fork interbay are not currently available and would not be available in the drier years, <u>if</u> the project were operated under PCWA's proposed instream flows, <del>because</del> flows would exceed the suitable boating flow range during May and June <u>in above and below normal water year types</u> due to the cumulative effect of pulse flows, <u>spills, accretion, and/or increased minimum instream flows</u> that would be released from French Meadows reservoir and Duncan Creek.	<b>Clarification.</b> The corrected text more accurately represents the boating opportunities between French Meadows dam and Middle Fork interbay.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Figure 8.9-1c, February 2011.</i>
3.3.5 Recreation and Land Use 3.3.5.2 Environmental Effects Recreation Management Programs <i>Ramping Our Analysis</i>	Page 243 Paragraphs 2 and 3	<i>Ramping</i>  PCWA's proposed ramping rates below Oxbow powerhouse are the same as what the agencies specify (see section 3.3.2, <i>Aquatic Resources</i> , table 3.3.2-10).  <i>Our Analysis</i>  PCWA's proposed ramping rates would represent a large reduction in the ramping rate of Oxbow powerhouse flow releases (50 percent reduction of upramping rate and 41 percent reduction of the downramping rate) and, during the driest water year types (dry, critical, extreme critical), a 900 cfs maximum limit on the Oxbow powerhouse releases from Memorial Day weekend to Labor Day. Reducing the ramping rate from Oxbow powerhouse would enhance recreation in the peaking reach by allowing recreationists to have more time to adjust their activities to changing flows. PCWA's proposed ramping rates in this reach would provide better conditions for angling compared to what currently exists.	<i>Ramping</i>  PCWA's proposed ramping rates below Oxbow powerhouse are <u>generally</u> the same as what the agencies <u>and Alternative 1</u> specify <u>except the agencies and Alternative 1 ramping rate conditions do not include the 900 cfs maximum flow release limit on Oxbow powerhouse. The 900 cfs limit would preclude the ability to provide the 1,000 cfs target whitewater boating flows in the reach</u> (see section 3.3.2, <i>Aquatic Resources</i> , table 3.3.2-10)  <i>Our Analysis</i>  PCWA's proposed ramping rates <u>and the agency and Alternative 1 ramping rates</u> would represent a large reduction in the ramping rate of Oxbow powerhouse flow releases (50 percent reduction of upramping rate and 41 percent reduction of the downramping rate) <u>and, during the driest water year types (dry, critical, extreme critical), a 900 cfs maximum limit on the Oxbow powerhouse releases from Memorial Day weekend to Labor Day.</u> Reducing the ramping rate from Oxbow powerhouse would enhance recreation in the peaking reach by allowing recreationists to have more time to adjust their activities to changing flows. PCWA's proposed ramping rates in this reach would provide better conditions for angling compared to what currently exists.	<b>Important Omission.</b> The 900 cfs upper limit on Oxbow powerhouse in the Proposed Action was "removed" in Alternative 1 and the USDA-FS Preliminary Terms and Conditions (Condition No. 22) so that the 1,000 cfs whitewater boating targets could be met. Alternative 1 and the USDA-FS Preliminary Terms and Conditions include higher minimum flows to reduce flow fluctuations in the peaking reach and eliminate the need for the 900 cfs cap.  <i>References: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Condition No. 22 – Minimum Streamflows, August 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Submittal of Alternative Conditions, Attachment C2, PCWA Alternative Condition No. 22 – Minimum Streamflows, Page 11, September 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Submittal of Alternative Conditions, Attachment C4, PCWA Alternative Condition No. 24 – Ramping Rates, Pages 23-24, September 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Submittal of Alternative Conditions, Attachment C8, PCWA Alternative Condition No. 39 – Recreation Streamflows in the Middle Fork American River below Oxbow Powerhouse, September 2011.</i>
3.3.6 Cultural Resources 3.3.6.1 Affected Environment Identified Resources <i>Archaeological and Historic-Era Resources</i>	Page 252 Paragraph 1 Line 17	In November 2011, PCWA identified five more resources within the APE (FS-05-03-372, FS-05-03-55-684, FS-05-03-55-689, FS-05-03-55-690, and FS-05-17-54-495) bringing the total site count to 37 properties (PCWA, 2011d).	In November 2011, PCWA identified five more resources within the APE (FS-05-03- <del>53</del> -372, FS-05-03-55-684, FS-05-03-55-689, FS-05-03-55-690, and FS-05-17-54-495) bringing the total site count to 37 properties (PCWA, 2011d).	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final Historic Properties Management Plan, Table 1, September 2012.</i>
3.3.6 Cultural Resources 3.3.6.1 Affected Environment Identified Resources <i>Archaeological and Historic-Era Resources</i>	Page 252 Paragraph 3 Line 3	Two of these resources (FS-05-03-55-64 and FS-05-03-65) had been previously determined to be eligible for listing on the National Register by the Forest Service, and a third site (FS-05-17-54-370) had been determined ineligible.	Two of these resources (FS-05-03- <del>55</del> 63-64 and FS-05-03- <del>53</del> -65) had been previously determined to be eligible for listing on the National Register by the Forest Service, and a third site (FS-05-17-54-370) had been determined ineligible.	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final Historic Properties Management Plan, Table 1, September 2012.</i>
3.3.6 Cultural Resources 3.3.6.1 Affected Environment Identified Resources <i>Archaeological and Historic-Era Resources</i>	Page 252 Paragraph 3 Line 10	In June 2010, the California SHPO concurred with all of these recommendations except for one (letter from M.W. Donaldson, California SHPO, California Department of Parks and Recreation, Sacramento, CA, to A. Fecko, Resource Planning Administrator, PCWA, June 22, 2010).	In June 2010, the California SHPO concurred with all of these recommendations <del>except for one</del> (letter from M.W. Donaldson, California SHPO, California Department of Parks and Recreation, Sacramento, CA, to A. Fecko, Resource Planning Administrator, PCWA, June 22, 2010).	<b>Clarification.</b> SHPO concurred with all of PCWA's findings.  <i>Reference: Letter from M.W. Donaldson, California SHPO, California Department of Parks and Recreation, Sacramento, CA, to A. Fecko, Resource Planning Administrator, PCWA, June 22, 2010</i>
3.3.6 Cultural Resources 3.3.6.1 Affected Environment Identified Resources <i>Archaeological and Historic-Era Resources</i>	Page 260 Paragraph 3 Line 4	In its HPMP, PCWA also stated that two other resources (FS-05-03-55-690 and ISO-06) were determined to be within the boundaries of FS-05-03-55-20, which is eligible for listing.	In its HPMP, PCWA also stated that two other resources (FS-05-03-55-690 and ISO-06) were determined to be within the boundaries of FS-05-03-55-20 <del>1</del> , which is eligible for listing.	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final Historic Properties Management Plan, Table 1, September 2012.</i>
3.3.6 Cultural Resources 3.3.6.2 Environmental Effects Project-Related Effects on Cultural Resources <i>Our Analysis</i>	Page 265 Paragraph 2 Line 1	In its Alternative 1 HPMP, PCWA recommends that two sites (FS-04-17-54-372 and FS-05-17-54-478) are not eligible for listing on the National Register;	In its Alternative 1 HPMP, PCWA recommends that two sites (FS- <del>04-17-54-05-03-53</del> -372 and FS-05-17-54-478) are not eligible for listing on the National Register;	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final Historic Properties Management Plan, Table 1, September 2012.</i>



**PCWA's Recommended Revisions to FERC's Draft Environmental Impact Statement.**

DEIS SECTION	DEIS REFERENCE	DEIS STATEMENT	PCWA'S RECOMMENDED REVISIONS	PCWA'S RATIONALE
3.3.6 Cultural Resources 3.3.6.2 Environmental Effects Project-Related Effects on Cultural Resources <i>Our Analysis</i>	Page 265 Paragraph 2 Line 1	In its Alternative 1 HPMP, PCWA recommends that two sites (FS-04-17-54-372 and FS-05-17-54-478) are not eligible for listing on the National Register; however, no documentation of California SHPO concurrence, and in the case of FS-04-17-54-372, consultation with BLM, regarding these recommendations is provided. Receipt of California SHPO concurrence would ensure compliance with section 106 and would ensure that these two sites are treated appropriately. Further, FS-05-17-54-478 is listed twice in table 1 of the Alternative 1 HPMP: once as a water conveyance ditch that has been recommended as ineligible for listing on the National Register and a second time as an unevaluated mining ditch. We assume that the identification of the site as unevaluated is incorrect, but clarification in the HPMP would ensure document accuracy.	In its Alternative 1 HPMP, PCWA recommends that two sites (FS-04-17-54-372 and FS-05-17-54-478) are not eligible for listing on the National Register; however, no documentation of California SHPO concurrence, and in the case of FS-04-17-54-372, consultation with BLM, regarding these recommendations is provided. Receipt of California SHPO concurrence would ensure compliance with section 106 and would ensure that these two sites are treated appropriately. <del>Further, FS-05-17-54-478 is listed twice in table 1 of the Alternative 1 HPMP: once as a water conveyance ditch that has been recommended as ineligible for listing on the National Register and a second time as an unevaluated mining ditch. We assume that the identification of the site as unevaluated is incorrect, but clarification in the HPMP would ensure document accuracy.</del>	<b>Clarification.</b> Sites FS-04-17-54-372 and FS-05-17-54-478 were evaluated for potential inclusion on the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) after the Area of Potential Effects (APE) was expanded. The evaluation results are documented in a NRHP Report for Site FS-05-03-53-372 and FS-05-17-54-478, which was included in Volume 3 of PCWA's Supplemental Filing (PCWA 2011b). The study results indicate that neither of these resources are eligible for inclusion on the NRHP.  The report has not yet been sent to SHPO for concurrence, because the ownership of the land under Site FS-05-03-53-372 was in question. This site was previously thought to be located on land managed by the Bureau of Land Management (BLM). Therefore, a copy of the NRHP Report for Site FS-05-03-53-372 and FS-05-17-54-478 was provided to the BLM for review on August 28, 2012. However, on September 20, 2012, the BLM indicated that the land underlying Site FS-05-03-372 is owned by the USDA-FS. Therefore, the BLM does not have jurisdiction and declined to comment on the report. A copy of the NRHP Eligibility Report will be sent the SHPO for review along with a letter requesting concurrence with the study recommendations. Copies of all correspondence with the BLM and with SHPO will be provided to the FERC.  Site FS-05-17-54-478 is a water conveyance ditch. PCWA completed an NRHP-evaluation of this ditch in 2011 and the evaluation results are documented in the report identified above.  The Final HPMP was revised to include this background information. In addition, Table 1 of the Final HPMP was corrected to show Site FS-05-17-54-478 as an evaluated water conveyance/mining ditch, and to exclude the erroneous reference to the ditch as unevaluated.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final Historic Properties Management Plan, Pages 10 and Table 1, September 2012.</i>
3.3.7 Aesthetic Resources 3.3.7.1 Affected Environment	Page 266 Paragraph 4 Line 10	Based on EVC ratings range from I (ecological changes only), to V (landscape changes are strong and obvious) most facilities have an EVC of II (changes are not visually evident unless pointed out) to III (changes are noticed but do not attract attention and appear as minor disturbances) and a few facilities have EVCs of I and IV (changes may attract some attention but disturbances resemble natural patterns).	Based on EVC ratings range from I (ecological changes only), to V (landscape changes are strong and obvious) most facilities have an EVC of II (changes are not visually evident unless pointed out) to III (changes are noticed but do not attract attention and appear as minor disturbances) and a few facilities have EVCs of <del>I and</del> IV (changes may attract some attention but disturbances resemble natural patterns).	<b>Typographical Error.</b>
<b>SECTION 4.0 DEVELOPMENTAL ANALYSIS</b>				
4.0 Developmental Analysis	Page 275 Table 4-2 Row 3 Column 3	Annual generation (MWh) <b>PCWA's Proposal:</b> 994,444 MWh	Annual generation (MWh) <b>PCWA's Proposal:</b> <del>994,444</del> <u>991,384</u> MWh	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Table 11-5, February 2011.</i>
4.1 Power and Economic Benefits of the Project 4.2.2 PCWA's Proposal	Page 276 Paragraph 1 Line 1	Under PCWA's proposal, the project would generate an average of 994,444 MWh of electricity annually.	Under PCWA's proposal, the project would generate an average of <del>994,444</del> <u>991,384</u> MWh of electricity annually.	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Table 11-5, February 2011.</i>
<b>SECTION 5.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS</b>				
5.1 Comparison of Alternatives	Page 305 Paragraph 2 Line 2	We estimate the annual generation of the project under the four alternatives identified above. Our analysis shows that the annual generation would be 994,444 MWh for the proposed action; 985,877 MWh for the staff alternative and Alternative 1; and 1,039,078 MWh for the no-action alternative.	We estimate the annual generation of the project under the four alternatives identified above. Our analysis shows that the annual generation would be <del>994,444</del> <u>991,384</u> MWh for the proposed action; 985,877 MWh for the staff alternative and Alternative 1; and 1,039,078 MWh for the no-action alternative.	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Table 11-5, February 2011.</i>
5.1 Comparison of Alternatives	Page 306 Table 5-1 Row 1 Column 3	<b>Resource:</b> Generation <b>Proposed Action:</b> 994,444 MWh	<b>Resource:</b> Generation <b>Proposed Action:</b> <del>994,444</del> <u>991,384</u> MWh	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Table 11-5, February 2011.</i>
5.2 Comprehensive Development and Recommended Alternative	Page 312 Paragraph 2 Line 4	We recommend this option because: (1) issuance of a new hydropower license by the Commission would allow PCWA to operate the project as an economically beneficial and dependable source of electrical energy for its customers;	We recommend this option because: (1) issuance of a new hydropower license by the Commission would allow PCWA to operate the project as an economically beneficial and dependable source of electrical energy for the <del>its customers</del> <u>California electrical grid</u> ;	<b>Clarification.</b> PCWA is an independent generator (wholesaler of electricity) that sells electricity to California's electrical retailers.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final License Application, Section 2.2, Page 2-2 and 2-3, February 2011.</i>
5.2 Comprehensive Development and Recommended Alternative 5.2.1 Measures Proposed by PCWA	Page 313 Paragraph 1 Bullet 4	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>Implement the proposed ramping rates downstream of French Meadows, Hell Hole, and Ralston afterbay reservoirs, and after the first two downramping events at French Meadows and Hell Hole dams, provide a report to the agencies and Commission documenting PCWA's ability to manage spill flows to provide the specified ramping rates and, if appropriate, make recommendations for any ramping rate modifications.</li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>Implement the proposed ramping rates downstream of French Meadows, Hell Hole, and Ralston afterbay reservoirs. <u>During the first two spill events when down ramp of spill flows occur at Hell Hole and French Meadows reservoirs, the Licensee will test their ability to manage spill flows to provide the specified flow schedules.</u> After the first two downramping events at French Meadows and Hell Hole dams, <u>PCWA will provide a testing report to the agencies and Commission documenting PCWA's ability to manage spill flows. After the second spill event, the Licensee may recommend modifications to provide the specified ramping rates. and, if appropriate, make recommendations for ramping rate modifications.</u></li> </ul>	<b>Clarification.</b> PCWA's recommended revisions are consistent with the ramping rate testing program specified in PCWA's Alternative Filing, Attachment C4 – Condition No. 24, Pages 21-22 and is consistent with the USDA-FS Preliminary Terms and Conditions, Condition No. 24. The recommended changes clarify that PCWA will be testing their ability to provide the specified ramping rates during the first two spill events.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Submittal of Alternative Conditions, Attachment C4, PCWA Alternative Condition No. 24 – Ramping Rates, Pages 21-22, September 2011.</i>

**PCWA's Recommended Revisions to FERC's Draft Environmental Impact Statement.**

DEIS SECTION	DEIS REFERENCE	DEIS STATEMENT	PCWA'S RECOMMENDED REVISIONS	PCWA'S RATIONALE
5.2 Comprehensive Development and Recommended Alternative 5.2.2 Additional Measures Recommended by Staff Implement Alternative 1 Instream Minimum Flows	Page 319 Table 5-2 Row 1 Columns 3-14	<b>Location:</b> Duncan Creek below Duncan diversion dam <b>Water Year Type:</b> E/C	<b>Location:</b> Duncan Creek below Duncan diversion dam <b>Water Year Type:</b> E/C ( <a href="#">add grey shading to row</a> )	<b>Clarification.</b> Enclosure 1 and Attachment C of PCWA's Supplemental Filing both specify 'or natural inflow' for minimum instream flows in Duncan Creek below the Duncan Creek Diversion Dam in all water year types.  <i>Reference: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Condition No. 22 – Minimum Streamflows, Page 16, August 2011.</i>
5.2 Comprehensive Development and Recommended Alternative 5.2.2 Additional Measures Recommended by Staff Implement Alternative 1 Instream Minimum Flows	Page 320 Table 5-2 Row 3 Columns 11-14	<b>Location:</b> American River below Middle Fork interbay dam <b>Water Year Type:</b> AN  May 1-14: 45 May 15-31: 45 June 1-14: 26 June 15-30: 26	<b>Location:</b> American River below Middle Fork interbay dam <b>Water Year Type:</b> AN  May 1-14: <a href="#">4565</a> May 15-31: <a href="#">4565</a> June 1-14: <a href="#">2645</a> June 15-30: <a href="#">2645</a>	<b>Clarification.</b> FERC's DEIS reflects the minimum instream flows recommended by the USDA-FS in their preliminary 4(e) conditions  <i>Reference: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Condition No. 22 – Minimum Streamflows, Page 17, August 2011.</i>
5.2 Comprehensive Development and Recommended Alternative 5.2.2 Additional Measures Recommended by Staff Implement Alternative 1 Instream Minimum Flows	Page 323 Paragraph 2 Line 1	Our recommended and PCWA's proposed minimum flow regimes are designed to provide temperatures that support hardhead spawning in lower project stream reaches (which typically occurs at higher water temperatures than trout).	Our recommended and PCWA's proposed minimum flow regimes are designed to <a href="#">provide maintain suitable</a> temperatures that support hardhead <del>spawning</del> -in lower project stream reaches ( <del>which typically occurs at hardhead require warmer higher</del> water temperatures than trout).	<b>Clarification.</b>  <i>References: PCWA, Final License Application, Section 8.5.9.1, Special-Status Species, Hardhead, Pages 8.5-30 and 31, February 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Section 3.5.9.1, Special-Status Species, Hardhead, Pages 3.5-29 and 30, November 2011.</i>

**PCWA's Recommended Revisions to FERC's Draft Environmental Impact Statement.**

DEIS SECTION	DEIS REFERENCE	DEIS STATEMENT	PCWA'S RECOMMENDED REVISIONS	PCWA'S RATIONALE
<p>5.2 Comprehensive Development and Recommended Alternative                      5.2.2 Additional Measures Recommended by Staff                      Implement the Alternative 1 Peaking Reach Minimum Flows during Planned and Unplanned Powerhouse Outages</p>	<p>Page 324                      Paragraph 2                      Line 1</p>	<p>Our recommended outage minimum flows make no provisions for modifying the peaking reach minimum flows specified in table 5-3 during planned outages. When unplanned outages at Middle Fork and Ralston powerhouses simultaneously occur from May through September for periods of less than 2 weeks, our recommended peaking reach minimum flow, consistent with Forest Service condition no. 25, would be as follows:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>If the Ralston afterbay water surface elevation is greater than 1,161 feet at the time of the outage, the minimum flow release would be 200 cfs or the minimum flow specified in table 5-2, whichever is less, until the elevation reaches less than or equal to 1,161 feet.</li> <li>If the Ralston afterbay water surface elevation is less than or equal to 1,161feet any time during the outage, the minimum flow release would be the October minimum flow specified in table 5-2.</li> </ul> <p>When just Ralston powerhouse experiences an unplanned outage from June through September for up to a 2-week period, water would be released from the Middle Fork powerhouse and bypassed reach downstream of Middle Fork interbay to ensure compliance with the peaking reach minimum flows specified in table 5-3.</p> <p>Minimum flows that would protect aquatic habitat during project operations would be similarly protective during planned and unplanned outages, and our recommended approach to maintaining minimum flows in the peaking reach during unplanned outages provides this level of assurance while allowing for some reductions during outages that occur between July through September to accommodate limitations of the project during a period when trout fry would have emerged from the gravel and become relatively mobile.</p>	<p>Our recommended outage minimum flows make no provisions for modifying the peaking reach minimum flows specified in table 5-3<del>2</del> during planned outages. When unplanned outages at Middle Fork and Ralston powerhouses simultaneously occur from May through September for periods of less than 2 weeks, our recommended peaking reach minimum flow, consistent with Forest Service condition no. 25, would be as follows:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>If the Ralston afterbay water surface elevation is greater than 1,161 feet at the time of the outage, the minimum flow release would be 200 cfs or the minimum flow specified in table 5-2, whichever is less, until the elevation reaches less than or equal to 1,161 feet.</li> <li>If the Ralston afterbay water surface elevation is less than or equal to 1,161feet any time during the outage, the minimum flow release would be the October minimum flow specified in table 5-2.</li> </ul> <p>When just Ralston powerhouse experiences an unplanned outage from June through September for up to a 2-week period, water would be released from the Middle Fork powerhouse and bypassed reach downstream of Middle Fork interbay to ensure compliance with the peaking reach minimum flows specified in table 5-3.</p> <p><u>It may be necessary to release additional water from Hell Hole Reservoir into the Rubicon River and from French Meadow Reservoir/Middle Fork Interbay into the MFAR to meet the minimum flow requirements in the peaking reach or downstream consumptive demands. In this case, release water will be split between the two rivers up to a maximum of 55 cfs release (60 cfs in Wet water years) in the Rubicon River and a maximum of 80 cfs in the MFAR below French Meadows Reservoir and below Interbay Reservoir. If these maximum flows of 80 cfs in the MFAR below Interbay Reservoir and 55 cfs (60 cfs in Wet water years) below Hell Hole Reservoir Dam are less than is necessary to meet the minimum streamflows described in the bulleted items above, the Licensee shall not release flows above these maximum flows except in the following circumstance: releases into the MFAR below Interbay Reservoir may exceed 80 cfs if necessary to meet consumptive demands and required minimum streamflows of 75 cfs at the American River Pump Station (75 cfs requirement pursuant to the Licensee's pump station mitigation requirement below American River Pump Station) upon commencement of FYLF monitoring and 24 hours advanced noticed to the FS, CDFG, and the State Water Board.</u></p> <p><u>If the unplanned outage extends beyond 2 weeks, minimum streamflows in the MFAR peaking reach during the remainder of the outage will be determined in consultation with FS, CDFG, and State Water Board. The flow release in the Rubicon River during the remainder of the outage will also be determined in consultation with FS, CDFG, and the State Water Board. Flow releases in the MFAR (from French Meadows Reservoir and/or the Middle Fork Powerhouse) will be determined by the Licensee in accordance with minimum streamflow requirements, water supply demands, and operational requirements (e.g., reservoir management, power generation).</u></p> <p>Minimum flows that would protect aquatic habitat during project operations would be similarly protective during planned and unplanned outages, and our recommended approach to maintaining minimum flows in the peaking reach during unplanned outages provides this level of assurance while allowing for some reductions during outages that occur between July through September to accommodate limitations of the project during a period when trout fry would have emerged from the gravel and become relatively mobile.</p>	<p><b>Typographical Error.</b></p> <p><b>Important Omission.</b> FERC's staff recommendation does not include (or explain) important elements of the outage conditions developed in consultation with the resource agencies that ensure protection of FYLF (sensitive species) within the Rubicon River below Hell Hole Dam and Middle Fork American River below Middle Fork Interbay Dam. The outage condition also ensures protection of water supply.</p> <p><i>References: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Condition No. 25 – Outages, August 2011.</i></p> <p><i>PCWA, Submittal of Alternative Conditions, Attachment C5, PCWA Alternative Condition No. 25 – Outages, Pages 25, September 2011.</i></p>

**PCWA's Recommended Revisions to FERC's Draft Environmental Impact Statement.**

DEIS SECTION	DEIS REFERENCE	DEIS STATEMENT	PCWA'S RECOMMENDED REVISIONS	PCWA'S RATIONALE
5.2 Comprehensive Development and Recommended Alternative 5.2.2 Additional Measures Recommended by Staff Implement Alternative 1 Pulse Flows	Page 325 Paragraph 2 Line 1	Alternative 1 and our recommended pulse flow measure specify a schedule of pulse flows for each bypassed reach based on water year type (table 5-4), downramping rates of pulse flows, compliance points, text periods, and reporting requirements.	Alternative 1 and our recommended pulse flow measure specify a schedule of pulse flows for each bypassed reach based on water year type (table 5-4), downramping rates of pulse flows, compliance points, <del>text</del> time periods, and reporting requirements.	<b>Typographical Error.</b>
5.2 Comprehensive Development and Recommended Alternative 5.2.2 Additional Measures Recommended by Staff Implement Alternative 1 Pulse Flows	Page 327 Paragraph 2 Line 1	Our recommended pulse flow measure specifies that during wet years, pulse flows would begin on May 15 instead of on May 1 (PCWA's proposal). This later initiation of pulse flows would provide more time for rainbow trout fry to emerge from the gravel prior to a planned high flow event, thus offering further protection to incubating eggs.	Our recommended pulse flow measure specifies that during wet years, pulse flows would begin on May 15 instead of on May 1 (PCWA's proposal). This later initiation of pulse flows would <u>occur prior to FYLF breeding and will protect FYLF populations. The pulse flows will occur prior to rainbow trout fry emergence in the bypass reaches (similar to natural conditions). Further, the magnitude of the pulse flows is designed to minimize deep scouring of gravels, therefore redds should be protected. provide more time for rainbow trout fry to emerge from the gravel prior to a planned high flow event, thus offering further protection to incubating eggs.</u>	<b>Clarification.</b> As stated discussed in Section 3.5, page 3.5-20 in PCWA's Supplemental Filing, the pulse flows are timed to start prior to FYLF breeding initiation'. In addition, as discussed in Section 3.5, page 3.5-17, the Alternative 1 pulse flows 'were designed to initiate motion of gravels (clean fines from gravels), but not excessively remove gravel substrates from the system.' Rainbow trout emergence from gravels in the bypass reaches occurs after initiation of the pulse flows (typically early to late June). However, pulse flows are designed to minimize deep scouring of gravels.  <i>References: PCWA, Final License Application, Supporting Document B, AQ 2 – Fish Populations Technical Study Report, February 2011. (Section 6.7.1, pg 23)</i>  <i>PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Section 3.5.9.2, Special-Status Species, Foothill Yellow-legged Frog, Pages 3.5-29 and 30, November 2011.</i>  <i>PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Section 3.5.3.3, Bypass Reach Habitat, Rainbow Trout Spawning, Scour, Pages 3.5-17, November 2011.</i>
5.2 Comprehensive Development and Recommended Alternative 5.2.2 Additional Measures Recommended by Staff Implement the Alternative 1 Whitewater Boating Flows in the Peaking Reach	Page 329 Table 5-5 Row 1 Column 4	<b>June 1-Labor Day</b>	<del>June 1-Labor Day-Saturday before Memorial Day-Labor Day</del>	<b>Clarification.</b>  <i>References: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Condition No. 39 – Recreation Streamflows in the Middle Fork American River Below Oxbow Powerhouse, Page 45, August 2011.</i>
5.2 Comprehensive Development and Recommended Alternative 5.2.2 Additional Measures Recommended by Staff Implement the Alternative 1 Whitewater Boating Flows in the Peaking Reach	Page 329 Table 5-5 Row 5 Column 4	<b>Weekends</b> <b>Water Year Type:</b> Below normal <b>Saturday before Memorial Day-Labor Day:</b> Saturdays except for Western States 100 date	<b>Weekends</b> <b>Water Year Type:</b> Below normal <b>Saturday before Memorial Day-Labor Day:</b> Saturdays (except for Western States 100 date <u>and Tevis Cup Race Days) and Sundays</u>	<b>Clarification.</b>  <i>References: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Condition No. 39 – Recreation Streamflows in the Middle Fork American River Below Oxbow Powerhouse, Page 45, August 2011.</i>
5.2 Comprehensive Development and Recommended Alternative 5.2.2 Additional Measures Recommended by Staff Implement Alternative 1 Whitewater Boating Flows in the Peaking Reach	Page 329 Table 5-5 Footnote A	<sup>a</sup> As measured below the confluence of Middle and North Forks of the American River (USGS gage no. 11433300).	<del><sup>a</sup> As measured below the confluence of Middle and North Forks of the American River (USGS gage no. 11433300).</del> –Flow compliance measured at the Middle Fork American River near Foresthill USGS Gage (No. 11433300).	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Condition No. 39 – Recreation Streamflows in the Middle Fork American River Below Oxbow Powerhouse, August 2011.</i>
5.2 Comprehensive Development and Recommended Alternative 5.2.2 Additional Measures Recommended by Staff Implement Alternative 1 Whitewater Boating Flows in the Peaking Reach	Page 330 Table 5-6 Footnote A	<sup>a</sup> As measured below the confluence of Middle and North Forks of the American River (USGS gage no. 11433300).	<del><sup>a</sup> As measured below the confluence of Middle and North Forks of the American River (USGS gage no. 11433300).</del> –Flow compliance measured at the Middle Fork American River near Foresthill USGS Gage (No. 11433300).	<b>Typographical Error.</b>  <i>Reference: USDA-FS, Preliminary Section 4(e) Terms and Conditions, Enclosure 1, Condition No. 39 – Recreation Streamflows in the Middle Fork American River Below Oxbow Powerhouse, August 2011.</i>
5.2 Comprehensive Development and Recommended Alternative 5.2.2 Additional Measures Recommended by Staff Expanded Special Status Plant Survey Area	Page 336 Paragraph 2	Both the proposed and Alternative 1 VIPMPs provide for surveys at 5-year intervals for special status plants and mosses consistent with the methods in the special-status plants technical study report (PCWA, 2008a). However, the area surveyed during the pre-application special status plant surveys did not include a portion of the French Meadows Campground water supply facility access road. Routine maintenance along this road could potentially affect special-status plants, if present, and surveys in this area would address any potential effects from project activities. Therefore, we recommend that the VIPMP included in a new license include special status plant surveys at 5-year intervals along the entire French Meadows Campground water supply access road. The benefits of ensuring the same level of protection for special status plants that may occur there as other areas included in the geographic scope of the proposed and Alternative 1 VIPMP during the term of a new license is worth the estimated levelized annual cost of \$1,260.	Both the proposed and Alternative 1 VIPMPs provide for surveys at 5-year intervals for special status plants and mosses consistent with the methods in the special-status plants technical study report (PCWA, 2008a). <del>However, the area surveyed during the pre-application special status plant surveys did not include a portion of the French Meadows Campground water supply facility access road. Routine maintenance along this road could potentially affect special status plants, if present, and surveys in this area would address any potential effects from project activities. Therefore, we recommend that the VIPMP included in a new license include special status plant surveys at 5-year intervals along the entire French Meadows Campground water supply access road. The benefits of ensuring the same level of protection for special status plants that may occur there as other areas included in the geographic scope of the proposed and Alternative 1 VIPMP during the term of a new license is worth the estimated levelized annual cost of \$1,260.</del>	<b>Updated Information.</b> Special-status plant surveys were conducted on the French Meadows Campground Water Supply Access Road during supplemental botanical surveys conducted in June and July 2011. Results of these surveys were provided in PCWA's Supplemental Filing. In addition, PCWA has committed to conduct special-status plant surveys every five years at all MFP facilities identified in Table 5.1 of the Alternative 1 Vegetation and Integrated Pest Management Plan, including the French Meadows Campground Water Supply Facility Access Road.  <i>Reference: PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Attachment 2A, Supplemental Biological Technical Study Report – 2011, Map 6, November 2011.</i>  <i>Reference: PCWA, Supplemental Filing, Attachment 1A, Vegetation and Integrated Pest Management Plan, Table 1, November 2011.</i>



**PCWA’s Recommended Revisions to FERC’s Draft Environmental Impact Statement.**

DEIS SECTION	DEIS REFERENCE	DEIS STATEMENT	PCWA’S RECOMMENDED REVISIONS	PCWA’S RATIONALE
5.2.2 Additional Measures Recommended by Staff Revised Historic Properties Management Plan	Page 340 Paragraph 1 Line 4	These effects would include those associated with reservoir drawdown for operation and maintenance purposes (i.e., FS-05-03-55-684 and FS- FS-05-03-55-689), recreation activities, including trail maintenance and alignment (PL-03 and PL-19), and road construction (FS-05-03-55-495) and documentation of California State Historic Preservation Office (California SHPO) concurrence with all National Register recommendations;	These effects would include those associated with <u>recreation and/or</u> reservoir drawdown for operation and maintenance purposes (i.e., FS-05-03-55-684 and FS- FS-05-03-55-689); <del>recreation activities,</del> <u>including</u> trail maintenance <del>and alignment (PL-03 and PL-19);</del> <u>gage maintenance (PL-03);</u> and road <del>construction maintenance/ trail upgrades (FS-05-03-55-495) (FS-05-17-54-495)</del> and documentation of California State Historic Preservation Office (California SHPO) concurrence with all National Register recommendations;	<b>Clarification.</b> The DEIS incorrectly refers to Site FS-05-17-54-495 as FS-05-03-55-495. Site FS-05-17-54-495 is a historic mining ditch located near a project diversion. This ditch crosses a project road and trail. The ditch could potentially be affected by maintenance of a gage.  PL-03 is a historic mining site located on private property (not owned by PCWA) outside of the FERC Project boundary. This resource could potentially be affected by maintenance of the Middle Fork American River Gage near Foresthill (USGS Gage 114333000).  <i>Reference: PCWA, Final Historic Properties Management Plan, Pages 29-30 and Table 1, September 2012.</i>
5.2.3 Measures Not Recommended by Staff Recreation	Page 343 Paragraph 2 Line 1	We do not recommend the project include any development at Cache Creek as specific in Forest Service condition no. 35, at an estimated levelized annual cost of \$7,500, because recreation use is related to dispersed camping and gold panning.	We do not recommend the project include any development at Cache <del>Creek</del> <u>Rock</u> as specific in Forest Service condition no. 35, at an estimated levelized annual cost of \$7,500, because recreation use is related to dispersed camping and gold panning.	<b>Typographical Error.</b>



**Attachment 1**  
**Distribution List**

**FERC Service List****American Whitewater**

Dave Steindorf  
CA Stewardship Director  
4 Baroni Dr  
Chico, CA 95928-4314

**CA Dept of Fish & Game**

Nancee Murray  
Senior Staff Counsel  
Office of Gen Counsel  
1416 Ninth St., 12<sup>th</sup> Flr  
Sacramento, CA 95814

**CA Dept of Water Resources**

Russ J Kanz  
1001 I St.  
Sacramento, CA 95814

**California Outdoors**

Nate Rangel  
P.O. Box 401  
Coloma, CA 95613

**Stephen M. Bowes**

National Park Service  
333 Bush St Ste 500  
San Francisco, CA 94104-2828

**Dept of the Interior, Office of the Solicitor**

Patricia Sanderson Port  
Regional Environmental Officer  
Office of Environmental Policy and Compliance  
US Dept of the Interior  
333 Bush St., Suite 515  
San Francisco, CA 94104

**Dept of the Interior, Office of the Solicitor**

Kerry O'Hara  
Assistant Regional Solicitor  
2800 Cottage Way, Ste E1712  
Sacramento, CA 95825

**Downey Brand LLP**

David Aladjem  
555 Capitol Mall  
Sacramento, CA 95814

**Granite Bay Flycasters  
Federation of Flyfishers  
Spring Creek Guide Service**

William Carnazzo  
5209 Crestline Drive  
Foresthill, CA 95631

**Foothills Water Network**

Julie Leimbach, Coordinator  
PO Box 713  
Lotus, CA 95651-0713

**CA Dept of Fish & Game**

MaryLisa Lynch  
Water Program Manager  
1701 Nimbus Rd., Suite A  
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

**CA Dept of Fish & Game**

Sharon J. Stohrer  
Staff Environmental Scientist  
1701 Nimbus Rd.  
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

**CA Dept of Water Resources**

David Rose, Staff Counsel  
1001 I Street  
Sacramento, CA 95814

**California Sportfishing Protection Alliance**

Christopher Shutes  
1608 Francisco Street  
Berkeley, CA 94703

**Dept of the Interior, Office of the Solicitor**

DOI Solicitor  
2800 Cottage Way, E 1712  
Sacramento, CA 95825

**Dept of the Interior, Office of the Solicitor**

Luke Miller  
Assistant Regional Solicitor  
2800 Cottage Way, Ste E1712  
Sacramento, CA 95825

**Dept of the Interior, Office of the Solicitor**

Kevin Tanaka, Attorney  
Solicitor  
2800 Cottage Way, Ste E1712  
Sacramento, CA 95825

**Downey Brand LLP**

Wendy Jones  
621 Capitol Mall, 18<sup>th</sup> Flr  
Sacramento, CA 95814

**Horseshoe Bar Fish & Game Preserve  
Foothills Angler Coalition**

Thomas Bartos, President  
7430 Morningside Dr.  
Granite Bay, CA 95746

**FERC Service List (continued)****Individual**

Hilde Schweitzer  
P. O. Box 852  
Lotus, CA 95651

**KMT&G – Wells Fargo Center**

Janet Goldsmith  
400 Capitol Mall, 27th Floor  
Sacramento, CA 94814-4417

**Pacific Gas and Electric Company**

Paul Maben  
Supervising Program Manager  
1108 Murphy's Grade Road  
Angels Camp, CA 95222

**Pacific Gas and Electric Company**

Jennifer Abrams  
Attorney  
77 Beale Street, #B30A  
San Francisco, CA 94105

**Placer County Water Agency**

Board of Directors  
Chairman  
P.O. Box 6570  
Auburn, CA 95604

**Protect American River Canyons**

Gary Estes, Board Member  
4135 Eagles Nest  
Auburn, CA 95603

**Spiegel & McDiarmid LLP**

William Huang  
1333 New Hampshire Ave., NW  
Washington, DC 20036

**Trout Unlimited**

Brian J. Johnson, Staff Attorney  
2239 5<sup>th</sup> St.  
Berkeley, CA 94710

**USDA-Office of the General Counsel**

Joshua S. Rider  
33 New Montgomery, 17<sup>th</sup> Flr  
San Francisco, CA 94105

**Upper American River Foundation**

John Donovan  
741 Commons Dr.  
Sacramento, CA 95825

**Pacific Gas and Electric Company**

Alyssa Koo  
Attorney  
77 Beale Street, #B30A  
San Francisco, CA 94105

**Pacific Gas and Electric Company**

Mark Patrizio  
Attorney  
P.O. Box 7442  
San Francisco, CA 94120

**Placer County Water Agency**

David A. Breninger  
General Manager  
P.O. Box 6570  
Auburn, CA 95604-6570

**Placer County Water Agency**

Jay L'Estrange  
Director of Power Generation Services  
P.O. Box 667  
Foresthill, CA 95631-0667

**Sackheim Consulting**

Kelly Sackheim, Principal  
5096 Cocoa Palm Way  
Fair Oaks, CA 95628-5159

**Spiegel & McDiarmid LLP**

Margaret McGoldrick  
1333 New Hampshire Ave., NW  
Washington, DC 20036

**USDA-FS, El Dorado National Forest**

Beth Paulson  
Hydro Coordinator  
100 Forni Rd  
Placerville, CA 95667

## **Other Interveners**

### **Upper American River Foundation**

Bill Templin  
5125 Linda Lou Drive  
Carmichael, CA 95608

### **US Department of Commerce**

Kathryn Kempton, Office of General Counsel  
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration  
NMFS –SW Regional Office  
501 W. Ocean Blvd., Suite 4470  
Long Beach, CA 90802

### **US Department of Commerce**

Richard Wantuck  
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration  
NMFS –Santa Rosa Area Office  
777 Sonoma Avenue, Room 325  
Santa Rosa, CA 95404-4731

## **OTHERS**

### **Deputy Chief**

### **National Forest Systems, Forest Service**

Washington Office (WO), Lands Staff  
Mail Stop 1124  
1400 Independence Ave., S.W.  
Washington, D.C. 20250-0003

**Federal Government/Representatives****National Marine Fisheries Service**

Habitat Manager  
777 Sonoma Avenue, Rm. 325  
Santa Rosa, CA 95404

**Federal Energy Regulatory Commission**

Office of Energy Products  
888 First St., NE  
Room 61-02  
Washington, DC 20426

**Federal Energy Regulatory Commission**

Dr. Frank A. Winchell  
Archaeologist, 888 First St, NE  
Routing Code PJ-14.6/Room 61-10  
Washington, DC 20426

**US Bureau of Land Management**

James Michael Eicher  
Associate Field Manager  
5152 Hillside Circle  
El Dorado Hills, CA 95762

**US Bureau of Reclamation**

Peggi Brooks  
Chief Recreation Resources Division  
Central California Area Officer  
7794 Folsom Dam Road  
Folsom, CA 95630-1799

**US Bureau of Reclamation**

Don Glaser  
Regional Director  
Mid-Pacific Region  
2800 Cottage Way, MP-100  
Sacramento, CA 95825-1846

**US Environmental Protection Agency**

Region 9 (AZ, CA, HI, NV)  
75 Hawthorne Street  
San Francisco, CA 94105

**USDA-FS, El Dorado National Forest**

Susan Durham  
Botanist  
100 Forni Road  
Placerville, CA 95667

**USDA-FS, El Dorado National Forest**

Tom Koler  
Geologist  
100 Forni Road  
Placerville, CA 95667

**National Oceanic & Atmospheric Administration  
– Fisheries**

Jeff McLain  
Acting Central Valley Supervisor  
650 Capitol Mall, Suite 8300  
Sacramento, CA 95814

**Federal Energy Regulatory Commission**

Office of General Counsel-Energy Projects  
888 First St., NE  
Room 101-56  
Washington, DC 20426

**FERC Office of Energy Projects**

Wing Lee  
Acting Director  
901 Market St, Suite 350  
San Francisco, CA 94103

**US Bureau of Land Management**

William Haigh  
Office/Field Manager  
5152 Hillside Circle  
El Dorado Hills, CA 95672

**US Bureau of Reclamation**

Elizabeth (Beth) Dyer  
Natural Resources Specialist  
Central California Area Office  
7794 Folsom Dam Rd  
Folsom, CA 95630

**US Bureau of Reclamation**

Mike Finnegan  
Central Area Office Manager  
7794 Folsom Dam Road  
Folsom, CA 95630

**USDA-FS, El Dorado National Forest**

Dorit Buckley  
Archeologist  
Georgetown Ranger District  
7600 Wentworth Springs Road  
Georgetown, CA 95634

**USDA-FS, El Dorado National Forest**

Jon Jue  
Resource Officer  
7600 Wentworth Springs Rd  
Georgetown, CA 95634

**USDA-FS, El Dorado National Forest**

Dawn Lipton  
Wildlife Biologist  
100 Forni Road  
Placerville, CA 95667



**Federal Government/Representatives (continued)****USDA-FS, El Dorado National Forest**

Lester Lubetkin  
Recreation  
100 Forni Road  
Placerville, CA 95667

**USDA-FS, El Dorado National Forest**

Katy Parr  
Heritage & Tribal Program Manager  
100 Forni Road  
Placerville, CA 95667

**USDA-FS, El Dorado National Forest**

Kathy Hardy  
Forest Supervisor  
100 Forni Road  
Placerville, CA 95667

**USDA-FS, El Dorado National Forest**

Jann Williams  
Biologist  
100 Forni Road  
Placerville, CA 95667

**USDA-FS – Region 5 – Regional**

Dennis Smith, RHAT Program Manager  
Regional Hydropower Assistance Team (RHAT)  
Pacific Southwest Region  
1323 Club Drive  
Vallejo, CA 94592

**USDA-FS, Tahoe National Forest**

William Davis  
Landscape Architect  
22830 Foresthill Road  
Foresthill, CA 95631

**USDA-FS, Tahoe National Forest**

Scott Husmann  
Engineer  
22830 Foresthill Road  
Foresthill, CA 95631

**USDA-FS, Tahoe National Forest**

Tom Quinn  
Forest Supervisor  
631 Coyote St.  
Nevada City, CA 95959-2250

**USDA-FS, Tahoe National Forest**

Nolan Smith  
District Archeologist  
22830 Foresthill Road  
Foresthill, CA 95631

**USDA-FS, El Dorado National Forest**

Kim Morales  
Hydrologist  
100 Forni Road  
Placerville, CA 95667

**USDA-FS, El Dorado National Forest**

Paul Sanders  
Engineering/Roads Specialist  
100 Forni Road  
Placerville, CA 95667

**USDA-FS, El Dorado National Forest**

Patricia Trimble  
District Ranger  
Georgetown Ranger District  
7600 Wentworth Springs Road  
Georgetown, CA 95634

**USDA – Natural Resources Conservation**

Mike Brenner  
District Conservationist  
251 Auburn Ravine Road  
Auburn, CA 95603

**USDA-FS – Sierra Nevada Research Ctr**

Amy Lind  
Wildlife Biologist/Herpetologist  
1731 Research Park Drive  
Davis, CA 95618

**USDA-FS, Tahoe National Forest**

Chris Fischer, District Ranger  
American River Ranger District  
22830 Foresthill Road  
Foresthill, CA 95631

**USDA-FS, Tahoe National Forest**

Victor Lyon  
Wildlife Biologist  
22830 Foresthill Road  
Foresthill, CA 95631

**USDA-FS, Tahoe National Forest**

Carrie Smith  
Heritage Program Manager  
Tribal Relations Program Manager  
10811 Stockcrest Spring Dr  
Truckee, CA 96161

**USDA-FS, Tahoe National Forest**

Dan Teater  
Fisheries Biologist  
22830 Foresthill Road  
Foresthill, CA 95631

**Federal Government/Representatives (continued)**

**USDA-FS, Tahoe National Forest**

Mo Tebbe  
Public Service Officer  
22830 Foresthill Road  
Foresthill, CA 95631

**US Senate**

Barbara Boxer  
501 I Street, Suite 7-600  
Sacramento, CA 95814

**US House of Representatives**

Tom McClintock  
508 Cannon HOB  
Washington, DC 20515

**US Fish & Wildlife Service**

Jeremiah Karuzas  
Fish and Wildlife Biologist  
2800 Cottage Way, Room W-2605  
Sacramento, California 95825-1846

**US Senate**

Dianne Feinstein  
One Post Street, Suite 2450  
San Francisco, CA 94104

**State Government/Representatives****Auburn Area Recreation & Park District**

Kahl Muscott  
123 Recreation Drive  
Auburn, CA 95603

**California Department of Fish & Game**

Robert Hughes  
Senior Hydraulic Engineer  
830 S Street  
Sacramento, CA 95814

**California Department of Fish & Game**

Stafford Lehr  
1701 Nimbus Road  
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

**California State Parks**

Bill Deitchman  
California State Park Ranger  
501 El Dorado St  
Auburn, CA 95603

**California State Parks – Folsom State Park**

Jim Micheaels  
Recreation Area  
7806 Folsom Auburn Road  
Folsom, CA 95630

**Department of Parks and Receptions**

Milford Wayne Donaldson, FAIA  
State Historic Preservation Officer  
Office of Historic Preservation  
1725 23rd St, Suite 100  
Sacramento, CA 95816

**CA State Senator**

Ted Gaines  
State Capitol Office  
Room 2068  
Sacramento, CA 94248-0001

**California Department of Boating & Waterways**

Sylvia Hunter  
Chief, Boating & Waterways Local Assistance Program  
2000 Evergreen Street, Suite 100  
Sacramento, CA 95815-3888

**California Department of Fish & Game**

Beth Lawson  
Associate Hydraulic Engineer  
1701 Nimbus Road  
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

**California Department of Fish & Game**

Matt Myers  
Environment Scientist  
601 Locust Street  
Redding, CA 96001

**California State Parks – ASRA**

Mike Lynch, Acting Superintendent  
501 El Dorado St.  
Auburn, CA 95603

**State Water Resources Control Board**

Jennifer Watts  
Division of Water Rights  
P.O. Box 2000  
Sacramento, CA 95812-2000

**Department of Water Resources**

Ted Frink  
P.O. Box 942836  
Sacramento, CA 94236-0001

**CA State Assemblywoman**

Beth Gaines  
1700 Eureka Road, Suite 160  
Roseville, CA 95661

**Local Government****City of Auburn**

Robert Richardson  
City Manager  
1225 Lincoln Way  
Auburn, CA 95603

**City of Lincoln**

Jim Estep  
City Manager  
600 6<sup>th</sup> Street  
Lincoln, CA 95648

**County of Placer**

Brett Storey  
County Executive Office  
175 Fulweiler Ave  
Auburn, CA 95603

**El Dorado Board of Supervisors**

Suzanne Allen de Sanchez  
Clerk to the Board  
330 Fair Ln  
Placerville, CA 95667

**Placer County**

Holly Heinzen  
Assistance County Executive Officer  
175 Fulweiler Avenue  
Auburn, CA 95603

**Placer County Counsel's Office**

Scott Finley  
Supervising Deputy County Counsel  
175 Fulweiler Avenue  
Auburn, California 95603

**City of Colfax**

Bruce Kranz  
City Manager  
P.O. Box 702  
Colfax, CA 95713

**City of Roseville**

Ray Kerridge  
City Manager  
311 Vernon Street,  
Roseville, CA 95678

**County of Placer**

Eric Waidmann  
Assistant Treasurer–Tax Collector  
2976 Richardson Drive  
Auburn, CA 95603

**Foresthill Municipal Advisory Council**

Larry Jordan  
P.O. Box 207  
Foresthill, CA 95631

**Placer County Board of Supervisors**

Jocelyn Maddux, Field Rep. District 5  
175 Fulweiler Avenue  
Auburn, California 95603

**Town of Loomis**

Rick Angelocci  
City Manager  
6140 Horseshoe Bar Road, Suite K  
Loomis, CA 95650

**Public Agency****El Dorado County Water Agency**

Dave Eggerton  
General Manager  
3932 Ponderosa Road, Suite 200  
Shingle Springs, CA 95682

**El Dorado Irrigation District**

Brian Deason  
Hydroelectric Compliance Analyst  
2890 Mosquito Road  
Placerville, CA 95667

**Georgetown Divide Public Utility District**

Henry White  
General Manager  
P.O. Box 4240  
Georgetown, CA 95634

**Placer County Resource Conservation District**

Tom Wehri  
Board President  
251 Auburn Ravine Road, Ste 105  
Auburn, CA 95603

**El Dorado County Water Agency**

Tracey Eden-Bishop, P.E.  
Water Resources Engineer  
3932 Ponderosa Road, Suite 200  
Shingle Springs, CA 95682

**Foresthill Public Utility District**

Tamra West  
Director  
P.O. Box 266  
Foresthill, CA 95631

**Nevada Irrigation District**

Ron Nelson  
General Manager  
P.O. Box 1019  
Grass Valley, CA 95945-1019

**San Juan Water District**

Sauna Lorange  
General Manager  
9935 Auburn-Folsom Road  
Granite Bay, CA 95746



## **Native American Tribes**

### **Colfax–Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe**

Leon Poitras  
3420 Rattlesnake Rd  
Newcastle, CA 95658

### **Colfax-Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe**

Judy Marks, Secretary  
P.O. Box 4884  
Auburn, CA 95604

### **Shingle Springs Rancheria**

Nicolas Fonseca  
Chair  
P.O Box 1340  
Shingle Springs, CA 95682

### **T'Si–Akim Maidu**

Donald Ryberg  
Chair  
1275 E Main Street  
Grass Valley, CA 95945

### **United Auburn Indian Community Preservation Committee**

Allen Adams  
10720 Indian Hill Rd  
Auburn, CA 95603

### **United Auburn Indian Community of the Auburn Rancheria**

David Keyser  
Tribal Chairperson  
10720 Indian Hill Rd  
Auburn, CA 95603

### **United Auburn Indian Community Preservation Committee**

Sande Delgado  
10720 Indian Hill Rd  
Auburn, CA 95603

### **Washoe Tribe of Nevada & California**

Marie Barry  
Environmental Specialist  
919 Highway 395 South  
Gardnerville, NV 89410

### **Washoe Tribe of Nevada & California**

Darrel Cruz  
CRO/THPO  
919 US Highway 395 South  
Gardnerville, NV 89410

### **Colfax–Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe**

Pam Cubbler  
Chair  
P.O. Box 4884  
Auburn, CA 95604-4884

### **Nisenan Maidu**

April Moore  
19630 Placer Hills Rd  
Colfax, CA 95713

### **Shingle Springs Rancheria**

Jeff Murray  
P.O.Box 1340  
Shingle Springs, CA 95682

### **Todds Valley Miwok-Maidu Cultural Foundation**

Keith Drone  
Cultural Preservation Chair  
P.O. Box 1490  
Foresthill, CA 95631

### **United Auburn Indian Community of the Auburn Rancheria**

Marcos Guerrero, M.A., RPA  
Cultural Resources Specialist  
10720 Indian Hill Rd  
Auburn, CA 95603

### **United Auburn Indian Community of the Auburn Rancheria**

Roman Porter  
Tribal Administrator  
10720 Indian Hill Rd  
Auburn, CA 95603

### **United Auburn Indian Community Preservation Committee**

John L. Williams  
10720 Indian Hill Rd  
Auburn, CA 95603

### **Washoe Tribe of Nevada & California**

Wanda Batchelor  
Chairwoman  
919 US Highway 395 South  
Gardnerville, NV 89410

### **Washoe Tribe of Nevada and California**

Lloyd Wyatt- Vice-Chairman  
919 Highway 395  
Gardnerville, NV 89410

## **Non-Governmental Organizations**

### **American River Recreation Association & Sierra Nevada Alliance**

Bill Center  
P.O. Box 623  
Lotus, CA 95651

### **Auburn Chamber of Commerce**

Rich Johnson  
Government Affairs Committee  
601 Lincoln Way  
Auburn, CA 95603

### **Auburn Flycasters Granite Bay Flycasters**

Larry Goodell  
P.O. Box 756  
Auburn, CA 95604

### **California Hydropower Reform Coalition**

Laura Norlander  
2140 Shattuck Ave., Suite 605  
Berkeley, CA 94704

### **Canyon Keepers**

Jim Ferris  
501 El Dorado St  
Auburn, CA 95603

### **Farm Bureau, Placer County**

Jim Bachman  
10120 Ophir Road  
Newcastle, CA 95658

### **Friends of the River**

Ron Stork  
915 20th St  
Sacramento, CA 95814

### **Pacific Gas & Electric**

Dave Ward  
343 Sacramento Street  
Auburn, CA 95603

### **Pacific Gas & Electric**

Steve Pierano  
Relicensing Project Manager  
Mail Code N11E  
P.O. Box 70000  
San Francisco, CA 94177-0001

### **Sacramento Municipal Utility District**

David Hanson  
Project Manager, Hydro Relicensing  
6201 S St  
Sacramento, CA 95817

### **Auburn Chamber of Commerce**

Bruce Cosgrove, CEO  
601 Lincoln Way  
Auburn, CA 95603

### **Auburn Flycasters**

Grant Fraser  
President  
P.O. Box 0756  
Auburn, CA 95604

### **Audubon Society**

Don Rivenes  
12826 Newtown Road  
Nevada City, CA 95959

### **California Native Plant Society**

Sue Britting  
P.O. Box 377  
Coloma, CA 95613

### **Dry Creek Conservancy**

Greg Bates  
P.O. Box 1311  
Roseville, CA 95678

### **Friends of the North Fork**

Michael Garabedian  
7143 Gardenvine Avenue  
Citrus Heights, CA 95621

### **Granite Bay Flycasters**

Heath Wakelee  
4120 Douglas Blvd. #306-356  
Granite Bay, CA 95746-5936

### **Pacific Gas & Electric**

Dave Hinshaw  
PG&E Account Executive  
343 Sacramento Street  
Auburn, CA 95603

### **Protect American River Canyons**

Eric Peach  
P.O. Box 9312  
Auburn, CA 95604

### **Sacramento Municipal Utility District**

Dudley McFadden  
Principal Civil Engineer  
P.O. Box 15830  
Sacramento, CA 95817

**Non-Governmental Organizations (continued)****Sacramento Municipal Utility District**

Jim Shetler  
Assistant General Manager, Energy Supply  
6201 S St,  
Sacramento, CA 95817

**Sierra Club – Mother Lode Chapter**

Terry Davis  
801 K Street, Suite 2700  
Sacramento, CA 95814

**Sierra Club – Placer Group**

Marilyn Jasper  
P.O. Box 7167  
Auburn, CA 95604-7167

**SARSAS**

Jack Sanchez  
3675 Larkin Lane  
Auburn, CA 95602

**Western States Trail Foundation**

Thomas Christofk  
1216-C High Street  
Auburn, CA 95603

**Western States Trail Foundation**

Mike Pickett  
1216-C High Street  
Auburn, CA 95603

**Sacramento Municipal Utility District**

Carol Szuch  
Management Analyst  
6201 S Street  
Sacramento, CA 95817

**Sierra Club – Mother Lode Chapter**

Allan Eberhart  
801 K Street, Suite 2700  
Sacramento, CA 95814

**Sierra Salmon Alliance**

Tyrone Gorre  
1700 Meadow Vista Road  
Meadow Vista, CA 95722

**Western States Endurance Run**

Anthony Rossmann  
Rossmann & Moore, LLP  
380 Hayes Street  
San Francisco, CA 94102

**Western States Trail Foundation**

Steve Hallmark  
7845 Jeannie Ct.  
Loomis, CA 95650

**West Yost**

Max Colorado  
1380 Lead Hill Road, Suite 201  
Roseville, CA 95661

**Public****Advanced Energy Strategies**

Dean Tibbs  
1800 Sutter Street, Suite 870  
Concord, CA 94520-2540

**Cramer Fish Sciences**

Bradley J. Cavallo  
13300 New Airport Road, Suite 102  
Auburn, CA 95602

**Foresthill Messenger**

Jim Linsdau  
P.O. Box 1024  
Foresthill, CA 95631

**Jones & Associates**

Tom Jones  
12331 Incline Drive  
Auburn, CA 95603

**Lone Star Timber**

Larry Gonzales  
Mason, Bruce, & Girard, Inc.  
13620 Lincoln Way, Suite 380  
Auburn, CA 95603

**Sierra Pacific Industries**

Tim Feller  
P.O. Box 496028  
Redding, CA 96049-6028

**Stoel Rives, Attorney at Law**

Attn: Denise Morison  
770 L Street, Suite 800  
Sacramento, CA 95814

Roger Canfield  
7818 Olympic Way  
Fair Oaks, CA 95628

Neil Cochran  
5344 Crestline Drive  
Foresthill, CA 95631

Anthony DeRiggi  
932 46th Street  
Sacramento, CA 95819

Charlie Fullerton  
135 Mering Court  
Sacramento, CA 95864

John Greene  
P.O. Box 465  
Meadow Vista, CA 95722

Donna Williams  
4170 Auburn Folsom Road  
Loomis, CA 95650

**Canyon Raft Rentals**

John Hauschild  
133 Borland Avenue  
Auburn, CA 95603

**Dunlap Group**

John Dunlap  
231 Cherry Avenue, Suite 202  
Auburn, CA 95603

**FROG**

Sherry Wicks  
P.O. Box 568  
Foresthill, CA 95631

**Leupp & Woodall**

Tim Woodall  
149 Court Street  
Auburn, CA 95603

**Northern CA Council/Fed of Fly Fishers**

Gary Flanagan  
8459 Lakeland Drive  
Granite Bay, CA 95746

**Spiegel & McDiarmid LLP**

Frances Francis  
1333 New Hampshire Ave., NW  
Washington, DC 20036

**Troutman Sanders LLP**

Clifford Sikora  
401 Ninth St., NW, Suite 1000  
Washington D.C. 20004-2134

Bob Center  
10794 Arrow Point Place  
Grass Valley, CA 95959

Dan Crandall  
P.O. Box 828  
Lotus, CA 95651

Craig Crouch  
5307 Hawkhaven Court  
Rocklin, CA 95765

Patricia Gibbs  
5425 Lake Forest Dr  
Loomis, CA 95650

Chris Shackleton  
2359 Sonata Drive  
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

**Attachment 2**  
**Certificate of Service**

**CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE**

Pursuant to the provisions of 18 C.F.R. § 385.2010, I hereby certify that I have this day served the foregoing document to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), each person designated on the official service list compiled by the Secretary, and other stakeholders to the relicensing proceedings for Project No. 2079, as set forth in the attached distribution list, by eFiling and eService (upon receipt of FERC's Acceptance for Filing email). For those parties unable to receive emails, one paper copy and one electronic copy of the foregoing documents were provided via courier service. In addition, I have mailed via courier service, one courtesy copy of this document to FERC's Office of Energy Projects and one courtesy copy to FERC's Office of General Counsel-Energy Projects.

Dated at Auburn, CA this 1<sup>st</sup> day of October 2012.



---

Andrew Fecko  
Resource Planning Administrator  
Placer County Water Agency